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Consolidated Financial Statement
QIAGEN N.V. AND SUBSIDIARIES CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (in thousands)( )

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

NNoottee

AAssssss ooooooff DDeeeeeecccccceeeeeemmbbbbbbeeeeeerr 33333311,,,,,,

22002200 22001199

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents (3) $ 597,984 $ 623,647

Restricted cash (3) — 5,743

Short-term investments (7) 117,249 129,586

Accounts receivable, net of allowance for credit losses of $27,052 in 2020 and

allowance for doubtful accounts of $12,115 in 2019

(3, 24) 380,519 385,117

Income taxes receivable 59,335 42,119

Inventories, net (3) 291,181 170,704

Prepaid expenses and other current assets (of which $25,429 and $13,697 in

2020 and 2019 due from related parties, respectively)

(8, 24) 206,921 105,464

Fair value of derivative instruments - current (14) 14,127 107,868

TToottaal ccuurrrreenntt aasssseettss 1,667,316 1,570,248

Long-term assets:

Property, plant and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of $630,443 and

$699,130 in 2020 and 2019, respectively

(9) 559,372 455,243

Goodwill (11) 2,364,031 2,140,503

Intangible assets, net of accumulated amortization of $809,724 and $776,520 in

2020 and 2019, respectively

(11) 726,194 632,434

Deferred income tax assets (17) 54,879 56,542

Fair value of derivative instruments — long-term (14) 379,080 192,266

Other long-term assets (of which $9,594 and $16,830 in 2020 and 2019 due from

related parties, respectively)

(10, 12, 24) 161,658 188,380

TToottaal loonngg-tteerrmm aasssseettss 4,245,214 3,665,368

TToottaal aasssseettss $ 5,912,530 $ 5,235,616
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QIAGEN N.V. AND SUBSIDIARIES CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (in thousands, except par value)( , p p )

NNoottee

AAss ooff DDeecceemmbbeerr 3311,,

22002200 22001199

Current liabilities:

Current portion of long-term debt (16) $ 42,539 $ 285,244

Accounts payable (24) 118,153 84,767

Fair value of derivative instruments — current (14) 51,464 103,175

Accrued and other current liabilities (of which $1,380 and $15,404 due to related

parties in 2020 and 2019, respectively)

(10, 13, 24) 345,665 444,303

Income taxes payable 57,265 33,856

TToottaal ccuurrrreenntt liiaabbiiliittiieess 615,086 951,345

Long-term liabilities:

Long-term debt, net of current portion (16) 1,880,210 1,421,108

Deferred income tax liabilities (17) 39,216 23,442

Fair value of derivative instruments — long-term (14) 393,455 196,929

Other long-term liabilities (12, 15) 186,724 106,201

TToottaal loonngg-tteerrmm liiaabbiiliittiieess 2,499,605 1,747,680

Commitments and contingencies (20)

Equity:

Preference shares, 0.01 EUR par value, authorized—450,000 shares, no shares

issued and outstanding

— —

Financing preference shares, 0.01 EUR par value, authorized—40,000 shares, no

shares issued and outstanding

— —

Common Shares, 0.01 EUR par value, authorized—410,000 shares, issued—

230,829 shares in 2020 and 2019, respectively

2,702 2,702

Additional paid-in capital 1,834,169 1,777,017

Retained earnings 1,323,091 1,178,457

Accumulated other comprehensive loss (18) (243,822) (309,619)

Less treasury shares, at cost—2,844 and 3,077 shares in 2020 and 2019,

respectively

(18) (118,301) (111,966)

TToottaal eeqquuiittyy 2,797,839 2,536,591

TToottaal liiaabbiiliittiieess aanndd eeqquuiittyy $ 5,912,530 $ 5,235,616

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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QIAGEN N.V. AND SUBSIDIARIES CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME (LOSS) 

(in thousands, except per share data)p p

NNoottee

YYeeaarrss eennddeedd DDeecceemmbbeerr 3311,,

22002200 22001199 22001188

Net sales (3, 4, 24) $ 1,870,346 $ 1,526,424 $ 1,501,848

Cost of sales:

Cost of sales 574,467 449,651 444,165

Acquisition-related intangible amortization 63,164 71,511 56,723

TToottaal ccoosstt ooff ssaaleess 637,631 521,162 500,888

GGrroossss pprrooffiitt 1,232,715 1,005,262 1,000,960

Operating expenses:

Research and development (3) 149,072 157,448 161,852

Sales and marketing 413,684 391,906 392,281

General and administrative (3) 111,678 112,262 104,568

Acquisition-related intangible amortization 20,811 29,973 39,032

Restructuring, acquisition, integration and other, net (1, 6) 150,005 199,778 28,659

Long-lived asset impairments (6) 1,034 140,031 7,987

TToottaal ooppeerraattiinngg eexxppeennsseess 846,284 1,031,398 734,379

Innccoommee ((loossss)) ffrroomm ooppeerraattiioonnss 386,431 (26,136) 266,581

Other income (expense):

Interest income 10,032 22,113 20,851

Interest expense (71,317) (74,185) (67,293)

Other income, net (6) 114,326 432 5,598

TToottaal ootthheerr iinnccoommee ((eexxppeennssee)),, nneett 53,041 (51,640) (40,844)

Income (loss) before income tax (benefit) expense 439,472 (77,776) 225,737

Income tax expense (benefit) (3, 17) 80,284 (36,321) 35,357

NNeett iinnccoommee ((loossss)) $ 359,188 $ (41,455) $ 190,380

BBaassiicc eeaarrnniinnggss ((loossss)) ppeerr ccoommmmoonn sshhaarree (19) $ 1.57 $ (0.18) $ 0.84

DDiiluutteedd eeaarrnniinnggss ((loossss)) ppeerr ccoommmmoonn sshhaarree (19) $ 1.53 $ (0.18) $ 0.82
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Weighted-average common shares outstanding

Basic (19) 228,427 226,777 226,640

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Diluted (19) 234,214 226,777 233,456

QIAGEN N.V. AND SUBSIDIARIES CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)  

(in thousands)( )

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

NNoottee

YYeeaarrss eennddeedd DDeecceemmbbeerr 3311,,

22002200 22001199 22001188

NNeett iinnccoommee ((loossss)) $ 359,188 $ (41,455) $ 190,380

Other comprehensive income (loss) to be reclassified to profit or loss in

subsequent periods:

(Losses) gains on cash flow hedges, net of tax benefit of $2.8 million in

2020, tax expense of $0 in 2019 and tax expense of $2.8 million in

2018

(14) (8,536) 11,547 8,526

Reclassification adjustments on cash flow hedges, net of tax expense of

$4.7 million in 2020, tax expense of $0 in 2019 and tax benefit of

$2.4 million in 2018

(14) 13,999 (3,888) (7,331)

Cash flow hedges, net of tax 5,463 7,659 1,195

Net investment hedge (26,442) 5,505 13,839

Gain on pension, net of tax expense of $0 in 2020, tax expense of

$0.4 million in 2019 and tax benefit of $0.6 million in 2018

(38) (437) 754

Foreign currency translation adjustments, net of tax expense of $0.9

million in 2020, tax benefit of $0.5 million in 2019 and tax benefit of

$1.4 million in 2018

86,814 (11,702) (106,615)

TToottaal ootthheerr ccoommpprreehheennssiivvee iinnccoommee ((loossss)) 65,797 1,025 (90,827)

CCoommpprreehheennssiivvee iinnccoommee ((loossss)) $ 424,985 $ (40,430) $ 99,553

NNoottee

YYeeaarrss eennddeedd DDeecceemmbbeerr 3311,,

22002200 22001199 22001188
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QIAGEN N.V. AND SUBSIDIARIES CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

((iinn tthhoouussaannddss)) NNoottee CCoommmmoonn SShhaarreess

AAddddiittiioonnaal

PPaaiidd-Inn

CCaappiittaal

RReettaaiinneedd

EEaarrnniinnggss

AAccccuummuulaatteedd

OOtthheerr

CCoommpprreehheennssiivvee

Innccoommee ((LLoossss)) TTrreeaassuurryy SShhaarreess TToottaal EEqquuiittyy

SShhaarreess AAmmoouunntt SShhaarreess AAmmoouunntt

BBaalaannccee aatt

DDeecceemmbbeerr 3311,,

22001177

230,829 $ 2,702 $ 1,630,095 $ 1,247,945 $ (220,759) (4,272) $ (118,987) $ 2,540,996

ASU 2016-01

impact of

change in

accounting

policy

— — — (942) 942 — — —

ASU 2016-16

impact of

change in

accounting

policy

— — — (16,096) — — — (16,096)

ASC 606

impact of

change in

accounting

policy

— — — (1,306) — — — (1,306)

Issuance of

warrants

(18) — — 71,983 — — — — 71,983

Net income — — — 190,380 — — — 190,380

Unrealized

gain, net on

pension

— — — — 754 — — 754

Unrealized

gain, net on

hedging

contracts

(14) — — — — 22,365 — — 22,365

Realized gain,

net on

hedging

contracts

(14) — — — — (7,331) — — (7,331)

Translation

adjustment,

net

— — — — (106,615) — — (106,615)
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((iinn tthhoouussaannddss)) NNoottee CCoommmmoonn SShhaarreess

AAddddiittiioonnaal

PPaaiidd-Inn

CCaappiittaal

RReettaaiinneedd

EEaarrnniinnggss

AAccccuummuulaatteedd

OOtthheerr

CCoommpprreehheennssiivvee

Innccoommee ((LLoossss)) TTrreeaassuurryy SShhaarreess TToottaal EEqquuiittyy

SShhaarreess AAmmoouunntt SShhaarreess AAmmoouunntt

common

shares in

connection

with stock

plan

Share-based

compensation

(22) — — 40,113 — — — — 40,113

BBaalaannccee aatt

DDeecceemmbbeerr 3311,,

22001188

230,829 $ 2,702 $ 1,742,191 $ 1,379,624 $ (310,644) $ (5,320) $ (178,903) $ 2,634,970

ASC 842

impact of

change in

accounting

policy

— — — (316) — — — (316)

Net loss — — — (41,455) — — — (41,455)

Conversion of

warrants

(18) — — (31,067) (37,698) — 2,056 68,761 (4)

Unrealized

loss, net on

pension

— — — — (437) — — (437)

Unrealized

gain, net on

hedging

contracts

(14) — — — — 17,052 — — 17,052

Realized gain,

net on

hedging

contracts

(14) — — — — (3,888) — — (3,888)

Translation

adjustment,

net

— — — — (11,702) — — (11,702)

Purchase of

treasury

shares

(18) — — — — — (2,871) (104,685) (104,685)

Issuance of (22) — — — (40,357) — 1,823 44,769 4,412
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Share-based

compensation

(22) — — 65,893 — — — — 65,893

BBaalaannccee aatt

DDeecceemmbbeerr 3311,,

22001199

230,829 $ 2,702 $ 1,777,017 $ 1,178,457 $ (309,619) (3,077) $ (111,966) $ 2,536,591

ASC 326

impact of

change in

accounting

policy

— — — (15,074) — — — (15,074)

Net income — — — 359,188 — — — 359,188

Conversion of

warrants

(18) — — (7,547) (22,725) — 807 30,272 —

Termination of

warrants

(18) — — (30,289) (144,337) — — — (174,626)

Equity

component of

convertible

debt, net

(16) — — 54,052 — — — — 54,052

Unrealized

loss, net on

pension

— — — — (38) — — (38)

Purchase of

treasury

shares

(18) — — — — — (1,987) (74,450) (74,450)

Issuance of

common

shares in

connection

with stock

plan

(22) — — — (121,698) — 3,622 123,773 2,075

Tax

withholding

related to

vesting of

stock awards

(22) — — — — — (1,448) (51,147) (51,147)

((iinn tthhoouussaannddss)) NNoottee CCoommmmoonn SShhaarreess

AAddddiittiioonnaal

PPaaiidd-Inn

CCaappiittaal

RReettaaiinneedd

EEaarrnniinnggss

AAccccuummuulaatteedd

OOtthheerr

CCoommpprreehheennssiivvee

Innccoommee ((LLoossss)) TTrreeaassuurryy SShhaarreess TToottaal EEqquuiittyy

SShhaarreess AAmmoouunntt SShhaarreess AAmmoouunntt
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

related to

vesting of

stock awards

Share-based

compensation

(22) — — 40,936 — — — — 40,936

BBaalaannccee aatt

DDeecceemmbbeerr 3311,,

22002200

230,829 $ 2,702 $ 1,834,169 $ 1,323,091 $ (243,822) (2,844) $ (118,301) $ 2,797,839

Unrealized

loss, net on

hedging

contracts

(14) — — — — (34,978) — — (34,978)

Realized loss,

net on

hedging

contracts

(14) — — — — 13,999 — — 13,999

Translation

adjustment,

net

— — — — 86,814 — — 86,814

Purchase of

treasury

shares

(18) — — — — — (1,346) (63,995) (63,995)

Issuance of

common

shares in

connection

with stock

plan

(22) — — — (32,418) — 1,085 40,079 7,661

Tax

withholding

(22) — — — — — (313) (12,691) (12,691)

((iinn tthhoouussaannddss)) NNoottee CCoommmmoonn SShhaarreess

AAddddiittiioonnaal

PPaaiidd-Inn

CCaappiittaal

RReettaaiinneedd

EEaarrnniinnggss

AAccccuummuulaatteedd

OOtthheerr

CCoommpprreehheennssiivvee

Innccoommee ((LLoossss)) TTrreeaassuurryy SShhaarreess TToottaal EEqquuiittyy

SShhaarreess AAmmoouunntt SShhaarreess AAmmoouunntt
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((iinn tthhoouussaannddss)) NNoottee

YYeeaarrss eennddeedd DDeecceemmbbeerr 3311,,

22002200 22001199 22001188

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net income (loss) $ 359,188 $ (41,455) $ 190,380

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities,

net of effects of businesses acquired:

Depreciation and amortization 205,014 231,458 206,436

Non-cash impairments (6) 1,432 144,830 17,020

Amortization of debt discount and issuance costs 42,318 40,763 35,537

Share-based compensation expense (22) 40,936 65,893 40,113

Deferred income tax benefit (17) (6,706) (55,362) (23,272)

(Gain) loss on marketable securities (1,992) 2,867 (2,725)

Gain on sale of investment (10) (121,813) — —

Reversals of contingent consideration (15) — (10,433) —

Other items, net including fair value changes in derivatives 11,696 (3,394) (8,834)

Net changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable (3) (14,711) (39,578) (41,813)

Inventories (3) (107,573) (30,028) (36,918)

Prepaid expenses and other current assets (8) 1,061 18,626 (9,942)

Other long-term assets 316 (1,406) (30,312)

Accounts payable 8,442 9,252 6,993

Accrued and other current liabilities (13) (22,141) 19,913 (13,317)

Income taxes (17) 4,682 (6,782) 14,239

Other long-term liabilities 57,657 (14,321) 15,911

Net cash provided by operating activities 457,806 330,843 359,496

Cash flows from investing activitiesee :

Purchases of property, plant and equipment (132,787) (117,950) (109,773)

Purchases of intangible assets (11) (171,450) (156,934) (40,990)

Proceeds from (purchases of) investments, net (10) 25,638 (5,170) (9,398)

Cash paid for acquisitions, net of cash acquired (5) (239,572) (68,058) (172,832)

Purchases of short-term investments (7) (49,770) (293,959) (568,002)

QIAGEN N.V. AND SUBSIDIARIES CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Proceeds from redemptions of short-term investments (7) 181,223 396,098 691,765
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((iinn tthhoouussaannddss)) NNoottee

YYeeaarrss eennddeedd DDeecceemmbbeerr 3311,,

22002200 22001199 22001188

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Proceeds from divestiture (5) 1,845 1,000 16,394

Cash (paid) received for collateral asset (14) (53,417) 22,685 (3,461)

Other investing activities (4,991) 10 (15,059)

Net cash used in investing activities (443,281) (222,278) (211,356)

Cash flows from financing activities:

Proceeds from short-term debt (16) 59,345 — —

Repayment of short-term debt (16) (58,705) — —

Proceeds from long-term debt, net of issuance costs (16) 497,646 — —

Repayment of long-term debt (16) (296,400) (506,400) —

Payment for termination of warrants (18) (174,627) — —

Payment of intrinsic value of cash convertible notes (16) (237,438) (133,763) —

Proceeds from exercise of call option related to cash convertible notes (16) 239,836 134,737 —

Purchase of treasury shares (18) (63,995) (74,450) (104,685)

Proceeds from issuance of common shares 7,662 2,075 4,412

Tax withholding related to vesting of stock awards (13,841) (49,998) —

Other financing activities (9,610) (11,281) (8,019)

Proceeds from issuance of cash convertible notes, net of issuance costs (16) — — 494,879

Purchase of call option related to cash convertible notes (16) — — (97,277)

Proceeds from issuance of warrants, net of issuance costs (18) — — 72,406

Principal payments on capital leases — — (1,308)

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (50,127) (639,080) 360,408

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash 4,196 826 (7,183)

Net (decrease) increase in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash (31,406) (529,689) 501,365

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, beginning of period 629,390 1,159,079 657,714

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, end of period $ 597,984 $ 629,390 $ 1,159,079

Supplemental cash flow disclosures:

Cash paid for interest $ 25,351 $ 29,721 $ 25,902

Cash paid for income taxes $ 42,572 $ 41,474 $ 29,317
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

1. Corporate Information and Basis of Presentation

Corporate Information

QIAGEN N.V. is a public limited liability company ('naamloze vennootschap') under Dutch law with registered office at Hulsterweg
82, 5912 PL Venlo, The Netherlands. QIAGEN N.V., a Netherlands holding company, and subsidiaries (we, our or the Company) is
a leading global provider of Sample to Insight solutions that enable customers to gain valuable molecular insights from samples
containing the building blocks of life. Our sample technologies isolate and process DNA, RNA and proteins from blood, tissue and
other materials. Assay technologies make these biomolecules visible and ready for analysis. Bioinformatics software and knowledge
bases interpret data to report relevant, actionable insights. Automation solutions tie these together in seamless and cost-effective
workflows. We provide solutions to more than 500,000 customers around the world in Molecular Diagnostics (human healthcare) and
Life Sciences (academia, pharma R&D and industrial applications, primarily forensics). As of December 31, 2020, we employed
more than 5,600 people in over 35 locations worldwide.

Announced Merger with Thermo Fisher Scientific Inc.

On March 3, 2020, QIAGEN and Thermo Fisher Scientific Inc. (NYSE: TMO) announced that their boards of directors, as well as the
Managing Board of QIAGEN N.V., unanimously approved Thermo Fisher’s proposal to acquire QIAGEN for 39.00 per share in
cash. On July 16, 2020, Thermo Fisher and QIAGEN entered into an amendment to the Business Combination Agreement dated as of
March 3, 2020 whereby Quebec B.V., the wholly-owned subsidiary of Thermo Fisher making the public tender offer, increased the
cash consideration offered per QIAGEN share from 39.00 to 43.00. The amendment also provided for a reduction of the
minimum acceptance threshold from 75% to 66.67% of QIAGEN’s issued and outstanding ordinary share capital at the end of the
acceptance period on August 10, 2020, as well as a $95.0 million expense reimbursement payable by QIAGEN to Thermo Fisher if
the minimum acceptance threshold is not met. On August 13, 2020, QIAGEN announced that Thermo Fisher did not achieve the
minimum 66.67% acceptance threshold from QIAGEN shareholders. For the year ended December 31, 2020, we incurred related
expenses of $125.5 million, which includes the $95.0 million expense reimbursement which was paid when the minimum acceptance
threshold was not met. These costs are recorded within restructuring, acquisition, integration and other expenses, net in the
accompanying consolidated statement of income.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements were prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) and all amounts are presented in U.S. dollars rounded to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise indicated. The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for derivative financial instruments,
contingent consideration and available-for-sale financial instruments that have been measured at fair value.

We undertake acquisitions to complement our own internal product development activities. In September 2020, we completed the
acquisition of the remaining shares in NeuMoDx Molecular, Inc ("NeuMoDx"), a privately-held U.S. company that designs and
develops molecular diagnostics solutions for hospital and clinical reference laboratories. In 2019, we completed three immaterial
acquisitions, including the January 2019 acquisition of N-of-One, Inc., a privately-held U.S. molecular decision support company and
pioneer in clinical interpretation services for complex genomic data located in Concord, Massachusetts. In April 2018, we acquired
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all shares in STAT-Dx Life, S.L. ("STAT-Dx"), a privately-held company located in Barcelona, Spain and also completed the acquisition
of the remaining shares of a privately held entity in which we held a minority interest. Accordingly, at their respective acquisition
dates, all the assets acquired and liabilities assumed were recorded at their respective fair values and our consolidated results of
operations include the operating results from the acquired companies from the acquisition date.

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.

2. Effects of New Accounting Pronouncements
The following new Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Updates (ASU) were adopted in 2020, 2019
and 2018:

Adoption of New Accounting Standards in 2020

ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments-Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments, provides
financial statement users with more decision-useful information about the expected credit losses on financial instruments and other
commitments to extend credit held by a reporting entity at each reporting date. To achieve this objective, the amendments in ASU
2016-13 replace the incurred loss impairment methodology with a methodology that reflects expected credit losses and requires
consideration of a broader range of reasonable and supportable information to form credit loss estimates. The measurement of
expected credit losses under Topic 326 is applicable to financial assets measured at amortized cost, including loan receivables and
held-to-maturity debt securities. It also applies to off-balance sheet credit exposures not accounted for as insurance (loan
commitments, standby letters of credit, financial guarantees, and other similar instruments) and net investments in leases recognized
by a lessor in accordance with Topic 842 on leases. In addition, Topic 326 made changes to the accounting for available-for-sale
debt securities. One such change is to require credit losses to be presented as an allowance rather than as a write-down on
available-for-sale debt securities management does not intend to sell or believes is more likely than not they will be required to sell.

We adopted Topic 326 on January 1, 2020 using the modified retrospective approach by recognizing the effect of initially applying
Topic 326 as an after-tax $15.1 million ($19.6 million pre-tax) adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings at January 1,
2020 for credit losses on loans, notes and accounts receivable. The adoption did not have an impact on our consolidated statements
of income or cash flows.

ASU 2018-18, Collaborative Arrangements (Topic 808): Clarifying the Interaction between Topic 808 and Topic 606, precludes an
entity from presenting consideration from a transaction in a collaborative arrangement as revenue from contracts with customers if the
counterparty is not a customer of that transaction. The guidance amends ASC 808 to refer to unit-of-account guidance in ASC 606
and requires it to be used only when assessing whether a transaction is in the scope of ASC 606. ASU 2018-18 is effective for us for
annual periods beginning on January 1, 2020. Entities are required to apply the amendments retrospectively to the date they initially
applied ASC 606. We adopted ASU 2018-18 on January 1, 2020 without any cumulative effect.

ASU 2020-03, Codification Improvements to Financial Instruments, was issued to improve and clarify various financial instrument
topics, including Topic 326 issued in 2016. The ASU includes seven issues that describe areas of improvement and the related
amendments to GAAP. They are intended to make the standards easier to understand and apply and to eliminate inconsistencies.
They are narrow in scope and are not expected to significantly change practice for most entities. The amendments have different
effective dates with early adoption permitted. We adopted ASU 2020-03 on January 1, 2020 without any effect.

ASU 2020-01, Investments-Equity Securities (Topic 321), Investments-Equity Method and Joint Ventures (Topic 323), and Derivatives

and Hedging (Topic 815)-Clarifying the Interactions between Topic 321, Topic 323, and Topic 815, addresses accounting for the
transition into and out of the equity method and measuring certain purchased options and forward contracts to acquire investments.

The ASU is effective on January 1, 2021. Early adoption is permitted, including early adoption in an interim period. We adopted
ASU 2020-01 on June 30, 2020 without any impact.
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Adoption of New Accounting Standards in 2019

The FASB issued guidance codified in Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 842, Leases (Topic 842), which supersedes the
lease requirements in ASC Topic 840 and aims to increase transparency and comparability among organizations and requires
disclosure of key information about leasing arrangements. The main principle of ASC 842 requires lessees to recognize the assets
and liabilities that arise from nearly all leases on the consolidated balance sheet. Lessor accounting remains mainly consistent with
the former guidance, with the majority of changes allowing for better alignment with the new lessee model and ASC Topic 606. We
adopted these standards as per the effective date of January 1, 2019, using the modified retrospective approach and did not restate
comparative periods. Under this approach, the cumulative effect of initially applying the standard was recognized as an adjustment
to the opening balance of retained earnings on the date of initial application. As a lessee, the classification of our leases did not
change, but we recognized a lease liability and corresponding right-of-use asset on our consolidated balance sheets for all our
operating leases. We have elected the package of practical expedients which allows us to not reassess (1) whether existing contracts
contain leases, (2) the lease classification for existing leases, and (3) whether existing initial direct costs meet the new definition. We
also elected the hindsight practical expedient which permits entities to use hindsight in determining the lease term when transitioning
to ASC 842. Our initial lease liabilities and right-of-use assets totaled $57.7 million and $57.4 million, respectively, as recorded in
our consolidated balance sheet as of January 1, 2019, primarily relating to leased office space. The difference between the
additional lease assets and lease liabilities was recorded as a $0.3 million adjustment to retained earnings. Further disclosure is

found in Note 12 "Leases".

ASU 2017-12, Derivatives and Hedging (Topic 815): Targeted Improvements to Accounting for Hedging Activities, makes more
financial and nonfinancial hedging strategies eligible for hedge accounting. It also amends the presentation and disclosure
requirements and changes how companies assess effectiveness. It is intended to more closely align hedge accounting with companies’
risk management strategies, simplify the application of hedge accounting, and increase transparency as to the scope and results of
hedging programs. The new guidance became effective for public entities beginning on January 1, 2019 by applying a modified
retrospective approach to existing hedging relationships as of the adoption date. Under the modified retrospective approach, entities
with cash flow or net investment hedges will make (1) a cumulative-effect adjustment to accumulated other comprehensive income so
that the adjusted amount represents the cumulative change in the hedging instruments’ fair value since hedge inception (less any
amounts that should have been recognized in earnings under the new accounting model) and (2) a corresponding adjustment to
opening retained earnings as of the most recent period presented on the date of adoption. We adopted ASU 2017-12 on January 1,
2019 without any cumulative effect.

ASU 2017-04, Intangibles—Goodwill and Other (Topic 350): Simplifying the Test for Goodwill Impairment, removes Step 2 of the
goodwill impairment test. A goodwill impairment will now be the amount by which a reporting unit’s carrying value exceeds its fair
value, not to exceed the carrying amount of goodwill. ASU 2017-04 is effective for public entities for annual periods beginning
January 1, 2020 and early adoption is permitted. The new guidance is required to be applied on a prospective basis. We adopted
ASU 2017-04 on January 1, 2019 and applied the new guidance prospectively as required.

ASU 2018-13, Fair Value Measurement (Topic 820): Disclosure Framework, provides guidance that eliminates, adds and modifies
certain disclosure requirements for fair value measurements. ASU 2018-13 is effective for public entities for annual periods beginning
January 1, 2020. Entities are permitted to early adopt either the entire standard or only the provisions that eliminate or modify the
requirements. We adopted ASU 2018-13 on January 1, 2019 and applied the entire standard to disclosures as required beginning
in 2019.

ASU 2018-15, Intangibles--Goodwill and Other--Internal-Use Software (Subtopic 350-40): Customer's Accounting for Implementation

Costs Incurred in a Cloud Computing Arrangement That Is a Service Contract, provides guidance on a customer's accounting for
implementation, set-up, and other upfront costs incurred in a cloud computing arrangement that is hosted by the vendor, i.e. a service
contract. Under the new guidance, customers will apply the same criteria for capitalizing implementation costs as they would for an
arrangement that has a software license. ASU 2018-15 is effective for public entities for annual periods beginning January 1, 2020,
and early adoption is permitted and should be applied either retrospectively or prospectively to all implementation costs incurred
after the date of adoption. We adopted ASU 2018-15 on January 1, 2019 and applied the guidance to all implementation costs
prospectively.
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ASU 2018-17, Consolidation (Topic 810): Targeted Improvements to Related Party Guidance for Variable Interest Entities, amends
how a decision maker or service provider determines whether its fee is a variable interest entity (VIE) when a related party under
common control also has an interest in the VIE. We adopted ASU 2018-17 on January 1, 2019, on a prospective basis.

Adoption of New Accounting Standards in 2018

ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606) and additional related accounting standard updates to clarify and
provide implementation guidance were adopted with a date of initial application of January 1, 2018. The comparative information
for 2017 has not been adjusted and continues to be reported under ASC Topic 605 Revenue Recognition. As a result, we changed
our accounting policy for revenue recognition. We applied the Topic 606 using the "modified retrospective method" by recognizing
the effect of initially applying Topic 606 as an $1.3 million decrease to the opening balance of retained earnings at January 1,
2018, for all contracts not completed at January 1, 2018.

ASU 2016-01, Financial Instruments - Overall (Subtopic 825-10): Recognition and Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial

Liabilities as well as an additional clarifying accounting standard update became effective for our financial statements beginning in
the first quarter of 2018. This ASU makes targeted improvements to existing U.S. GAAP for both the recognition and measurement of
financial assets and financial liabilities. Changes in accounting to our equity investments as a result of this standard are further
discussed in Notes below. As required, we adopted using a cumulative-effect adjustment to the balance sheet as of the beginning of
2018 and recorded an adjustment to decrease opening retained earnings at January 1, 2018 by $0.9 million (pre-tax $1.1 million)
as required for our equity investments recorded at fair value.

ASU 2016-05, Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230): Classification of Certain Cash Receipts and Cash Payments and ASU 2016-18,

Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 320): Restricted Cash, addresses classification issues and presentation related to the statement of
cash flows and was adopted on January 1, 2018 without any impact from the adoption.

ASU 2016-16, Income Taxes (Topic 740): Intra-Entity Transfers of Assets Other Than Inventory, aims to improve the accounting for the
income tax consequences of intra-entity transfers of assets other than inventory. This standard was adopted on a modified
retrospective basis resulting in a decrease to opening retained earnings of $16.1 million at January 1, 2018.

ASU 2017-01, Business Combinations (Topic 805): Clarifying the Definition of a Business, clarifies and provides a more robust
framework to use in determining when a set of assets and activities is a business. We adopted this update beginning January 1,
2018, without impact.

ASU 2017-09, Compensation-Stock Compensation (Topic 718): Scope of Modification Accounting, clarifies when to account for a
change to the terms and conditions of a share-based payment award as a modification. This guidance is effective prospectively and
was adopted as of January 1, 2018.

ASU 2018-02, Income Statement - Reporting Comprehensive Income (Topic 220): Reclassification of Certain Tax Effects from

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income, permits reclassification of stranded tax effects of the U.S. Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (Tax
Act). We adopted this standard as of April 1, 2018 with no impact as we had no stranded tax effects. This guidance only relates to
the effects of the Tax Act. For all other tax law changes that have occurred or may occur in the future, we reclassify the tax effects to
the consolidated statement of income (loss) on an item-by-item basis when the pre-tax item in accumulated other comprehensive
income (loss) is reclassified to income.

ASU 2018-07, Compensation-Stock Compensation (Topic 718): Improvements to Nonemployee Share-Based Payment Accounting,
aligns most of the accounting for share-based payment awards issued to employees and non-employees. We early adopted this
standard as of July 1, 2018, without material impact.
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New Accounting Standards Not Yet Adopted

The following new FASB Accounting Standards Updates, which are not yet adopted as of December 31, 2020, have been grouped
by their required effective dates or early adoption date:

First Quarter of 2021

ASU 2019-12, Income Taxes (Topic 740): Simplifying the Accounting for Income Taxes, removes certain exceptions for recognizing
deferred taxes for investments, performing intraperiod tax allocations and calculating income taxes in interim periods. The ASU also
adds guidance to reduce complexity in certain areas, including recognizing deferred taxes for tax goodwill and allocating income
taxes to members of a consolidated group. ASU 2019-12 is effective for annual periods beginning on January 1, 2021, with earlier
adoption permitted. We adopted the ASU on the efee fective date of January 1, 2021 and the adoption of this guidance did not have
an impact on our consolidated financial statements on the date of adoption. Ultimately, the impact in future periods will be dependent
on the extent of future events or conditions that would be affected such as enacted changes in tax laws or rates.

ASU 2020-06, Debt—Debt with Conversion and Other Options (Subtopic 470-20) and Derivatives and Hedging—Contracts in

Entity’s Own Equity (Subtopic 815-40): Accounting for Convertible Instruments and Contracts in an Entity’s Own Equity, reduces the
number of accounting models for convertible instruments. The ASU also amends diluted earnings per share (EPS) calculations for
convertible instruments, which will result in more dilutive EPS results. The ASU also amends the requirements for a contract (or
embedded derivative) that is potentially settled in an entity’s own shares to be classified in equity. ASU 2020-06 is effective for
annual periods beginning on January 1, 2022, with earlier adoption on January 1, 2021 permitted. We early adopted ASU 2020-
06 on January 1, 2021 and as a result reclassified $54.1 million from equity for the conversion feature to the liability for our 2027

Convertible Notes further discussed in Note 16 "Debt".

Through December 31, 2022

ASU 2020-04, Reference Rate Reform (Topic 848): Facilitation of the Effects of Reference Rate Reform on Financial Reporting, and

ASU 2021-01 Reference Rate Reform (Topic 848): Scope, provide companies with optional guidance to ease the potential accounting
burden associated with transitioning away from reference rates that are expected to be discontinued. Companies can apply the ASU
immediately. However, the guidance will only be available for a limited time, generally through December 31, 2022. We continue to
evaluate the guidance.

3. Summaryrr of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of QIAGEN N.V. and its wholly-owned subsidiaries. All significant
intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated. Investments in either common stock or in-substance common stock of
companies where we exercise significant influence over the operations but do not have control, and where we are not the primary
beneficiary, are accounted for using the equity method. All other investments are accounted for as discussed under "Non-marketee able
Investments" below. When there is a portion of equity in an acquired subsidiary not attributable, directly or indirectly, to the
Company, we record the fair value of the noncontrolling interests at the acquisition date and classify the amounts attributable to
noncontrolling interests separately in equity in the consolidated financial statements. Any subsequent changes in the Company's
ownership interest while the Company retains its controlling financial interest in its subsidiary are accounted for as equity
transactions.
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The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities and disclosure of contingencies
at the date of the financial statements as well as the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Concentrations of Risk

We buy materials for products from many suppliers, and are not dependent on any one supplier or group of suppliers for the business
as a whole. However, key components of certain products, including certain instrumentation components and chemicals, are
available only from a single source. If supplies from these vendors were delayed or interrupted for any reason, we may not be able to
obtain these materials timely or in sufficient quantities in order to produce certain products and sales levels could be negatively
affected. Additionally, our customers include researchers at pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies, academic institutions, and
government and private laboratories. Fluctuations in the research and development budgets of these researchers and their
organizations for applications in which our products are used could have a significant effect on the demand for our products.

The financial instruments used in managing our foreign currency, equity and interest rate exposures have an element of risk in that the
counterparties may be unable to meet the terms of the agreements. We attempt to minimize this risk by limiting the counterparties to a
diverse group of highly-rated international financial institutions. The carrying values of our financial instruments incorporate the non-
performance risk by using market pricing for credit risk. However, we have no reason to believe that any counterparties will default
on their obligations. In order to minimize our exposure with any single counterparty, we have entered into master agreements which
allow us to manage the exposure with the respective counterparty on a net basis.

Other financial instruments that potentially subject us to concentrations of credit risk are cash and cash equivalents, short-term
investments, and accounts receivable. We attempt to minimize the risks related to cash and cash equivalents and short-term
investments by dealing with highly-rated financial institutions and investing in a broad and diverse range of financial instruments. We
have established guidelines related to credit quality and maturities of investments intended to maintain safety and liquidity.
Concentration of credit risk with respect to accounts receivable is limited due to a large and diverse customer base, which is
dispersed over different geographic areas. Allowances are maintained for potential credit losses and such losses have historically
been within expected ranges.

Foreign Currency Translation

Our reporting currency is the U.S. dollar and the functional currencies of our subsidiaries are generally the local currency of the
respective countries in which they are headquartered. All amounts in the financial statements of entities whose functional currency is
not the U.S. dollar are translated into U.S. dollar equivalents at exchange rates as follows: (1) assets and liabilities at period-end
rates, (2) income statement accounts at average exchange rates for the period, and (3) components of equity at historical rates.
Translation gains or losses are recorded in equity, and transaction gains and losses are reflected in net income (loss) as a component
of other income, net. Realized gains or losses on the value of derivative contracts entered into to hedge the exchange rate exposure
of receivables and payables are also included in net income (loss) as a component of other income, net. The net loss on foreign
currency transactions was $4.1 million, $5.7 million, and $12.3 million in 2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively, and is included in
other income, net.

Use of Estimates
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Segment Information

We determined that we operate as one operating segment in accordance with the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)

Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 280, Segment Reporting. Our chief operating decision maker (CODM) makes
decisions based on the Company as a whole. In addition, we have a common basis of organization and types of products and
services which derive revenues and consistent product margins. Accordingly, we operate and make decisions as one reporting unit.

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue when control of promised goods or services transfers to our customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration that is expected to be received in exchange for those goods or services. The majority of our sales revenue is
recognized when products are shipped to the customers at which point control transfers.

Warranty

We provide warranties on our products against defects in materials and workmanship for a period of one year. A provision for
estimated future warranty costs is recorded in cost of sales at the time product revenue is recognized. Product warranty obligations
are included in accrued and other current liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Research and Development

Research and product development costs are expensed as incurred. Research and development expenses consist primarily of salaries
and related expenses, facility costs, and amounts paid to contract research organizations and laboratories for the provision of
services and materials as well as costs for internal use or clinical trials.

Government Grants

We recognize government grants when there is reasonable assurance that all conditions will be complied with and the grant will be
received. Our government grants generally represent subsidies for specified activities and are therefore recognized when earned as a

((UUSS$$ eeqquuiivvaaleenntt ffoorr oonnee))

CCloossiinngg rraattee aatt

DDeecceemmbbeerr 3311,, AAnnnnuuaal aavveerraaggee rraattee

22002200 22001199 22002200 22001199 22001188

Euro (EUR) 1.2271 1.1234 1.1411 1.1196 1.1813

Pound Sterling (GBP) 1.3649 1.3204 1.2836 1.2768 1.3356

Swiss Franc (CHF) 1.1360 1.0350 1.0659 1.0062 1.0228

Australian Dollar (AUD) 0.7720 0.7023 0.6905 0.6954 0.7478

Canadian Dollar (CAD) 0.7849 0.7696 0.7463 0.7535 0.7719

Japanese Yen (JPY) 0.0097 0.0092 0.0094 0.0092 0.0091

Chinese Yuan (CNY) 0.1530 0.1437 0.1450 0.1448 0.1514

The exchange rates of key currencies were as follows:
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reduction of the expenses recorded for the activity that the grants are intended to compensate. Thus, when the grant relates to
research and development expense, the grant is recognized over the same period that the related costs are incurred. Otherwise,
amounts received under government grants are recorded as liabilities in the balance sheet. When the grant relates to an asset, the
nominal amount of the grant is deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and recognized over the same period that the related
asset is depreciated.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective assets (qualifying asset) when such
borrowing costs are significant. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur.

Shipping and Handling Income and Costs

Shipping and handling costs charged to customers are recorded as revenue in the period that the related product sale revenue is
recorded. Associated costs of shipping and handling are included in sales and marketing expenses. For the years ended December
31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, shipping and handling costs totaled $32.1 million, $27.9 million and $28.4 million, respectively.

Advertising Costs

The costs of advertising are expensed as incurred and are included as a component of sales and marketing expense. Advertising
costs for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018 were $9.5 million, $8.1 million and $8.1 million, respectively.

General and Administrative

General and administrative expenses primarily represent the costs required to support administrative infrastructure. These costs
include licensing costs in connection with continued investments in information technology improvements, including cyber security,
across the organization as well as personnel in administrative functions.

Restructuring, Acquisition, Integration and Other

We incur indirect acquisition and business integration costs in connection with business combinations which are expensed when
incurred. These costs represent incremental costs that we believe would not have been incurred absent the business combinations.
Major components of these costs include consulting and related fees incurred to integrate or restructure the acquired operations,
payroll and related costs for employees remaining with the Company on a transitional basis and public relations, advertising and
media costs for re-branding of the combined organization.

Restructuring costs include personnel costs (principally termination benefits) as well as contract and other costs, primarily contract

termination costs. Termination benefits are accounted for in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 712, Compensation - Nonretirement

Postemployment Benefits, and are recorded when it is probable that employees will be entitled to benefits and the amounts can be
reasonably estimated. Estimates of termination benefits are based on the frequency of past termination benefits, the similarity of
benefits under the current plan and prior plans, and the existence of statutory required minimum benefits. Contract and other costs

are accounted for in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 420, Exit or Disposal Cost Obligations and are recorded when the liability is
incurred. The specific restructuring measures and associated estimated costs are based on management's best business judgment
under the existing circumstances at the time the estimates are made. If future events require changes to these estimates, such
adjustments will be reflected in the period of the revised estimate.



142

We account for income taxes under the liability method. Under this method, total income tax expense is the amount of income taxes
expected to be payable for the current year plus the change from the beginning of the year for deferred income tax assets and
liabilities established for the expected future tax consequences resulting from differences in the financial statement carrying amount
and the tax basis of assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets and/or liabilities are determined by multiplying the differences between
the financial statement carrying amount and the tax reporting bases for assets and liabilities by the enacted tax rates expected to be
in effect when such differences are recovered or settled. Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance to the amount
more likely than not to be realized. The effect on deferred taxes of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that
includes the enactment date.

Tax benefits are initially recognized in the financial statements when it is more likely than not that the position will be sustained upon
examination by the tax authorities. Such tax positions are initially and subsequently measured as the largest amount of tax benefit
that is greater than 50 percent likely of being realized upon settlement with the taxing authority using the cumulative probability
method, assuming the tax authority has full knowledge of the position and all relevant facts. Our policy is to recognize interest
accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits in interest expense and penalties within the income tax expense.

Derivative Instruments

We enter into derivative financial instrument contracts to minimize the variability of cash flows or income statement impact associated
with the anticipated transactions being hedged or to hedge fluctuating interest rates. As changes in foreign currency or interest rate
impact the value of anticipated transactions, the fair value of the forward or swap contracts also changes, offsetting foreign currency
or interest rate fluctuations. Derivative instruments are recorded on the balance sheet at fair value. Changes in fair value of
derivatives are recorded in current earnings or other comprehensive income, depending on whether a derivative is designated as part
of a hedge transaction.

Share-Based Payments

Compensation cost for all share-based payments is recorded based on the grant date fair value, less an estimate for pre-vesting
forfeitures, recognized in expense over the service period using an accelerated method.

Forfeiture Rate — This is the estimated percentage of grants that are expected to be forfeited or canceled on an annual basis before
becoming fully vested. We estimated the forfeiture rate based on historical forfeiture experience.

Restricted Stock Units and Performance Stock Units: Restricted stock units and performance stock units represent rights to receive
Common Shares at a future date. The fair market value of restricted and performance stock units is determined based on the number
of stock units granted and the fair market value of our shares on the grant date. The fair market value at the time of the grant, less an
estimate for pre-vesting forfeitures, is recognized in expense over the vesting period. At each reporting period, the estimated
performance achievement of the performance stock units is assessed and any change in the estimated achievement is recorded on a
cumulative basis in the period of adjustment.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on deposit in banks and other cash invested temporarily in various instruments that are
short-term and highly liquid, and having an original maturity of less than 90 days at the date of purchase. Cash and cash equivalents
as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 consist of the following:

Income Taxes
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Restricted Cash

Restricted cash includes cash that is subject to legal restriction in connection with a tender offer and not available for general
operating purposes. As of December 31, 2019, we had $5.7 million of restricted cash.

Short-Term Investments

Short-term investments consisting of marketable equity securities are reported at fair value with gains and losses recorded in earnings.

Short-term investments consisting of cash investments are classified as “available for sale” and stated at fair value, which is
equivalent to the amortized cost, in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet. Interest income is accrued when earned and
changes in fair market values are reflected in other income, net. The amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts to maturity
arising from acquisition is included in interest income. A decline in fair value that is judged to be other-than-temporary is accounted
for as a realized loss and the write-down is included in the consolidated statements of income. Realized gains and losses, determined
on a specific identification basis on the sale of short-term investments, are included in income.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents, notes receivable, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities
approximate their fair values because of the short maturities of those instruments. The carrying value of our variable rate debt and
leases approximates their fair values because of the short maturities and/or interest rates which are comparable to those available to
us on similar terms. The fair values of the zero coupon convertible debt and the Cash Convertible Notes are based on an estimation
using available over-the-counter market information. The fair values of the Private Placement Senior Notes were estimated using the
changes in the U.S. Treasury rates and the fair value of the German Private Placement is based on an estimation using changes in the
euro swap rates.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Credit Losses

Our accounts receivable consist of unsecured customer obligations and we are at risk to the extent such amounts become
uncollectible. Accounts receivable are carried at face value less an allowance for doubtful accounts as of December 31, 2019, and

following the adoption of ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments-Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial

Instruments, less an allowance for expected credit losses. We continually monitor accounts receivable balances, and until December
31, 2019, provided for an allowance for doubtful accounts at the time collection became questionable based on payment history or
age of the receivable. Since January 1, 2020, we maintain allowances for credit losses resulting from the expected failure or inability
of our customers to make required payments. We recognize the allowance for expected credit losses at inception and reassess
regularly considering historical experience with bad debts, the aging of the receivables, credit quality of the customer base, current
economic conditions and other reasonable and supportable expectations for future conditions, if applicable. Once a receivable is
determined to be uncollectible, the balance is charged against the allowance.

((iinn tthhoouussaannddss)) 22002200 22001199

Cash at bank and on hand $ 245,373 $ 189,569

Short-term bank deposits 352,611 434,078

Cash and cash equivalents $ 597,984 $ 623,647
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For the year ended December 31, 2020, additions charged to expense of $16.4 million include the forward-looking expected impact
of the global economic uncertainty caused by COVID-19.

Loans and Other Receivables and Allowance for Credit Losses

Prepaid expenses and other current assets include other short-term receivables and other long-term assets include long-term loan
receivables. Following the adoption of Topic 326, we are required to use the new forward-looking expected credit loss model that
replaced the previous incurred credit loss model. The new model generally results in earlier recognition of allowances for credit
losses and requires consideration of a broader range of information to estimate expected credit losses over the entire lifetime of the
assets. Accordingly, with the adoption of Topic 326, we recorded allowances for credit losses of $10.2 million for other receivables
and $1.3 million for loan receivables. As of December 31, 2020, allowances for credit losses of $7.9 million for other receivables
are included in prepaid expenses and other current assets and $1.2 million for loan receivables are included in other long-term
assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet. The allowances reflect the forward-looking expected impact of non-payment
of the contractual amounts due.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value, determined on either a weighted average cost basis or a standard
cost basis which is regularly adjusted to actual. Inventories include material, direct labor and overhead costs and are reduced for
estimated obsolescence. Inventories consisted of the following as of December 31, 2020 and 2019:

((iinn tthhoouussaannddss)) 22002200 22001199

Raw materials $ 65,449 $ 26,077

Work in process 74,398 45,729

Finished goods 151,334 98,898

TToottaal iinnvveennttoorriieess,, nneett $ 291,181 $ 170,704

We sell our products worldwide through sales subsidiaries and distributors. There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to
trade accounts receivable as we have a large number of internationally dispersed customers. Trade accounts receivable are non-
interest bearing and mostly have payment terms of 30-90 days. For all years presented, no single customer represented more than ten
percent of accounts receivable or consolidated net sales.

The changes in the allowance for credit losses on accounts receivable for the year ended December 31, 2020 and in the allowance
for doubtful accounts for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

((iinn tthhoouussaannddss)) 22002200 22001199 22001188

Balance at beginning of year $ 12,115 $ 9,270 $ 8,008

ASC 326 adoption impact 8,089 – –

Additions charged to expense 16,439 8,701 4,448

Deductions from allowance (9,868) (5,777) (2,827)

Currency translation adjustments and other 277 (79) (359)

Balance at end of year $ 27,052 $ 12,115 $ 9,270
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Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated amortization. Capitalized internal-use software costs include only
those direct costs associated with the actual development or acquisition of computer software solely to meet internal needs and cloud-
based applications to deliver our service and comprise costs associated with the design, coding, installation and testing of the
system. Costs associated with preliminary development, such as the evaluation and selection of alternatives, as well as training,
maintenance and support are expensed as incurred. Costs for software to be sold, leased or otherwise marketed that are related to
the conceptual formulation and design are expensed as incurred. Costs incurred to produce software products and the software
components of products to be sold, leased or marketed after technological feasibility is established are capitalized and amortized in
accordance with the accounting standards for the costs of software to be sold, leased, or otherwise marketed. All other depreciation
is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets (3 to 40 years). Amortization of leasehold
improvements is computed on a straight-line basis over the lesser of the remaining life of the lease or the estimated useful life of the
improvement asset. We have a policy of capitalizing expenditures that materially increase assets’ useful lives and charging ordinary
maintenance and repairs to operations as incurred. When property or equipment is disposed of, the cost and related accumulated
depreciation and amortization are removed from the accounts and any gain or loss is included in earnings.

Business Combinations

We include the results of operations of the businesses that we acquire as of the acquisition date. The purchase price of an acquired
business is allocated to the individual assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their fair values at the date of acquisition.
Those fair values are determined using income, cost and market approaches, most of which depend upon significant inputs that are
not observable in the market, or level 3 measurements. The excess of purchase price over the fair value of identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed is recorded as goodwill. Acquisition-related expenses are recognized separately from the business
combinations and are expensed as incurred.

The purchase price for some business combinations includes consideration that is contingent on the achievement of net sales or
earnings targets by the acquired business. Contingent consideration is measured initially and on a recurring basis at fair value.
Payments to settle the acquisition-date fair value of contingent consideration are presented as financing activities on the statement of
cash flows; any payments in excess of the acquisition-date fair value are presented as operating activities.

Acquired Intangibles and Goodwill

Acquired intangibles with alternative future uses are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and consist of licenses to
technology held by third parties and other acquired intangible assets. Amortization is computed over the estimated useful life of the
underlying patents, which has historically ranged from 1 to 20 years. Purchased intangible assets acquired in business combinations,
other than goodwill, are amortized over their estimated useful lives unless these lives are determined to be indefinite. Intangibles are
assessed for recoverability considering the contract life and the period of time over which the intangible will contribute to future cash
flow. The unamortized cost of intangible assets, where cash flows are independent and identifiable from other assets, is evaluated
periodically and adjusted, if necessary, if events and circumstances indicate that a decline in value below the carrying amount has
occurred. Intangible asset impairments recorded during the year ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018 are further discussed

in Note 6 "Restructuring and Impairments".

Amortization expense related to developed technology and patent and license rights which have been acquired in a business
combination is included in cost of sales. Amortization of trademarks, customer base and non-compete agreements which have been
acquired in a business combination is recorded in operating expense under the caption 'acquisition-related intangible amortization'.
Amortization expenses of intangible assets not acquired in a business combination are recorded within either the cost of sales,
research and development or sales and marketing line items based on the use of the asset.

We dispose the gross carrying amount and accumulated amortization of fully amortized intangible assets from historic business
combinations once they are considered fully integrated into our business.
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The fair value of in-process research and development (IPR&D) acquired in a business combination is capitalized as an indefinite-lived
intangible asset until completion or abandonment of the related research and development activities. IPR&D is tested for impairment
annually or when any event or circumstance indicates that the fair value may be below the carrying value. If and when research and
development is complete, the associated asset is amortized over the estimated useful life.

Goodwill represents the difference between the purchase price and the estimated fair value of the net assets acquired arising from
business combinations. Goodwill is subject to impairment tests annually or earlier if indicators of potential impairment exist, using a

fair-value-based approach. We have elected to perform our annual test for indications of impairment as of October 1 st  of each year.
Following the annual impairment tests for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, goodwill has not been impaired.

Non-Marketable Investments

We have investments in non-marketable equity securities issued by privately held companies. These investments are included in other
long-term assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Non-marketable investments through which we exercise significant
influence but do not have control are accounted for using the equity method. We monitor for changes in circumstances that may
require a reassessment of the level of influence. Following the adoption of ASU 2016-01 on January 1, 2018, our non-marketable
equity securities not accounted for under the equity method are either carried at fair value or under the measurement alternative.
Under the measurement alternative, the carrying value is measured at cost, less any impairment, plus or minus changes resulting from
observable price changes in orderly transactions for identical or similar investments of the same issuer. Adjustments are determined
primarily based on a market approach as of the transaction date.

Investments are evaluated periodically, or when impairment indicators are noted, to determine if declines in value are other-than-
temporary. In making that determination, we consider all available evidence relating to the realizable value of a security. This
evidence includes, but is not limited to, the following:

We consider whether the fair values of any of our non-marketable investments have declined below their carrying value whenever
adverse events or changes in circumstances indicate that recorded values may not be recoverable. If any such decline is considered
to be other than temporary (based on various factors, including historical financial results, product development activities and the
overall health of the affiliate’s industry), then a write-down of the investment would be recorded in operating expense to its estimated

fair value. Investment impairments recorded during the year ended December 31, 2020 are discussed in Note 10 "Investments."

Variable Interest Entities

We evaluate at the inception of each arrangement whether we have made an investment in an entity that is considered a variable
interest entity (VIE) or if we hold other variable interests in an arrangement that is considered a variable interest entity (VIE). We
consolidate VIEs when we are the primary beneficiary. The primary beneficiary of a VIE is the party that meets both of the following
criteria: (1) has the power to make decisions that most significantly affect the economic performance of the VIE; and (2) has the
obligation to absorb losses or the right to receive benefits that in either case could potentially be significant to the VIE. Periodically,
we assess whether any changes in our interest or relationship with the entity affect our determination of whether the entity is still a VIE
and, if so, whether we are the primary beneficiary. If we are not the primary beneficiary in a VIE, we account for the investment or
other variable interests in a VIE as an investment in a non-marketable investment or in accordance with other applicable GAAP.

adverse financial conditions of a specific issuer, segment, industry, region or other variables;�

the length of time and the extent to which the fair value has been less than cost; and�

the financial condition and near-term prospects of the issuer.�
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asset or a group of assets may not be recoverable. We consider, amongst other indicators, a history of operating losses or a change
in expected sales levels to be indicators of potential impairment. Assets are grouped and evaluated for impairment at the lowest level
for which there are identifiable cash flows that are largely independent of the cash flows of other groups of assets. If an asset is
detett rmined to be impaired, the loss is measured as the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds fair value which is
determined by applicable market prices, when available. When market prices are not available, we generally measure fair value by
discounting projected future cash flows of the asset. Considerable judgment is necessary to estimate discounted future cash flows.
Accordingly, actual results could differ from such estimates.

4. Revenue

Nature of Goods and Servrr ices

Our revenues are reported net of sales and value added taxes and accruals for estimated rebates and returns and are derived
primarily from the sale of consumable and instrumentation products, and to a much lesser extent, from the sale of services, intellectual
property and technology. Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in an amount
that reflects the consideration we expect to receive in exchange for those products or services. We enter into contracts that can
include various combinations of products and services, which are generally distinct and accounted for as separate performance
obligations. The transaction price is allocated to performance obligations based on their relative stand-alone selling prices.

We offer warranties on our products. Certain of our warranties are assurance-type in nature and do not cover anything beyond
ensuring that the product is functioning as intended. Based on the guidance in Topic 606, assurance-type warranties do not represent
separate performance obligations. The Company also sells separately-priced service contractcc s which qualify as service-type
warranties and represent separate performance obligations.

We sell our products and services both directly to customers and through distributors generally under agreements with payment terms
typically less than 90 days and in most cases not exceeding one year and therefore contracts do not contain a significant financing
component.

Consumable and Related Revenue

: In the last three years, revenue from consumable product sales has accounted for approximately 78-80% of our
net sales and revenue is recognized when performance obligations under the terms of a contract with a customer are satisfied. The
majority of our contracts have a single performance obligation to transfer a product or multiple performance obligations to transfer
multiple products concurrently. Accordingly, we recognize revenue when control of the products has transferred to the customer,
which is generally at the time of shipment of products as this is when title and risk of loss have been transferred. In addition,
invoicing typically occurs at this time so this is when we have a present right to payment. Revenue is measured as the amount of
consideration we expect to receive in exchange for transferring products and is generally based upon a negotiated formula, list or
fixed price.

: Revenues from related products include software-as-a-service (SaaS), licenses, intellectual property and patent sales,
royalties and milestone payments and over the last three years has accounted for approximately 6-10% of our net sales.

SaaS arrangements: Revenue from SaaS arrangements, which allow customers to use hosted software over the contract period without
taking possession of the software, is recognized over the duration of the agreement unless the terms of the agreement indicate that
revenue should be recognized in a different pattern, for example based on usage.

We review our long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets
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provided, generally over the life of the license. Fees from research collaborations include payments for technology transfer and
access rights. Royalties from licensees of intellectual property are based on sales of licensed products and revenues are recognized at
the later of (i) when the related sales occur, or (ii) when the performance obligation to which some or all of the royalty has been
allocated has been satisfied (or partially satisfied).

Milestone Payments: At the inception of each companion diagnostic co-development arrangement that includes development milestone
payments, which represent variable consideration, we evaluate whether the milestones are probable of being reached and estimate
the amount to be included in the transaction price using the most likely amount method. If it is probable that a significant revenue
reversal would not occur, the associated milestone value is included in the transaction price. Milestone payments that are not within
our control, such as milestones which are achieved through regulatory approvals, are considered to be constrained and excluded
from the transaction price until those approvals are received. Revenue is recognized following the input method as this is considered
to best depict the timing of the transfer of control. This involves measuring actual hours incurred to date as a proportion of the total
budgeted hours of the project. At the end of each subsequent reporting period, the proportion of completion is trued-up. We also re-
evaluate the probability of achievement of development milestones and any related constraint on a periodic basis, and if necessary,
adjust our estimate of the overall transaction price. Any such adjustments are recorded on a cumulative catch-up basis, which would
affect revenues and earnings in the period of adjustment.

Instruments

Revenue from instrumentation includes the instrumentation equipment, installation, training and other instrumentation services, such as
extended warranty services or product maintenance contracts and over the last three years has accounted for approximately 11-14%
of net sales. Revenue from instrumentation equipment is recognized when the customer obtains control of the instrument which is
predominantly at the time of delivery or when title has transferred to the customer. Service revenue is recognized over the term of the
service period as the customers benefit from the service throughout the service period. Revenue related to services performed on a
time-and-materials basis is recognized when performed.

Contract Estimates

The majority of our revenue is derived from contracts (i) with an original expected length of one year or less and (ii) contracts for
which we recognize revenue at the amount in which we have the right to invoice as product is delivered. We have elected the
practical expedient not to disclose the value of remaining performance obligations associated with these types of contracts.

However, we have certain companion diagnostic co-development contracts to provide research and development activities in which
our performance obligations extend over multiple years. As of December 31, 2020, we had $23.7 million of remaining performance
obligations for which the transaction price is not constrained related to these contracts which we expect to recognize over the next
12 to 18 months.

Revenue expected to be recognized in any future year related to remaining performance obligations, excluding revenue pertaining to
contracts that have an original expected duration of one year or less, contracts where revenue is recognized as invoiced and
contracts with variable consideration related to undelivered performance obligations, is not material.

Contract Balances

The timing of revenue recognition, billings and cash collections can result in billed accounts receivable, unbilled receivables (contract
assets), and customer advances and deposits (contract liabilities) in the consolidated balance sheet.

Licenses: Licenses for on-site software, which allow customers to use the software as it exists when made available, are sold as
perpetual licenses or term licenses. Revenue from on-site licenses are recognized upfront at the point in time at the later of when the
software is made available to the customer and the beginning of the license term. When a portion of the transaction price is
allocated to a performance obligation to provide support and/or updates, revenue is recognized as the updates/support are
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Refer to Note 21 "Segment Information" for disclosure of revenue by geographic region.

Additionally, we disaggregate our revenue based on product category as shown in the tables below for the years ended December
31, 2020, 2019 and 2018:

((iinn tthhoouussaannddss)) 22002200 22001199 22001188

Sample technologies $ 803,867 $ 548,365 $ 546,636

Diagnostic solutions 460,757 465,503 461,064

PCR / Nucleic acid amplification 363,552 224,685 236,952

Genomics / NGS 165,570 183,768 163,383

Other 76,600 104,103 93,813

TToottaal $ 1,870,346 $ 1,526,424 $ 1,501,848

Contract liabilities primarily relate to non-cancellable advances or deposits received from customers before revenue is recognized
and is primarily related to instrument service and SaaS arrangements. As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, contract liabilities
totaled $68.9 million and $56.2 million, respectively, of which $57.1 million and $48.5 million is included in accrued and other
current liabilities, respectively, and $11.8 million and $7.7 million in included in other long-term liabilities, respectively. During the
twelve months ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, we satisfied the associated performance obligations and recognized revenue of
$48.1 million and $48.3 million, respectively, related to advance customer payments previously received.

Disaggregation of Revenue

We disaggregate our revenue based on product type and customer class as shown in the tables below for the years ended December
31, 2020, 2019 and 2018:

((iinn tthhoouussaannddss)) 22002200 22001199 22001188

Consumables and related revenues $ 774,234 $ 665,866 $ 649,602

Instruments 129,742 71,266 82,197

Molecular Diagnostics 903,976 737,132 731,799

Consumables and related revenues 841,201 688,281 665,857

Instruments 125,169 101,011 104,192

Life Sciences 966,370 789,292 770,049

TToottaal $ 1,870,346 $ 1,526,424 $ 1,501,848

Contract assets as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 totaled $8.5 million and $5.5 million, respectively, and are included in prepaid
expenses and other current assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and relate to the companion diagnostic co-
development contracts discussed above.
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For acquisitions which have been accounted for as business combinations, the acquired companies’ results have been included in the
accompanying consolidated statements of income (loss) from their respective dates of acquisition. Our acquisitions have historically
been made at prices above the fair value of the acquired net assets, resulting in goodwill, due to expectations of synergies of
combining thtt e businesses. These synergies include use of our existing infrastructure, such as sales force, shared service centers,
distribution channels and customer relations, to expand sales of an acquired business' products; use of the infrastructure of the
acquired businesses to cost-effectively expand sales of our products; and elimination of duplicative facilities, functions and staffing.

If the acquired net assets do not constitute a business under the acquisition method of accounting, the transaction is accounted for as
an asset acquisition and no goodwill is recognized. In an asset acquisition, the amount allocated to acquired in-process research and
development with no alternative future use is charged to expense at the acquisition date.

2020 Business Combinations

In September 2020, we completed the acquisition of the remaining 80.1% of NeuMoDx Molecular, Inc. ("NeuMoDx") shares, a
privately-held U.S. company in which we held a minority interest. NeuMoDx designs and develops molecular diagnostics solutions for
hospital and clinical reference laboratories. Prior to acquisition, we held a 19.9% investment in NeuMoDx with a carrying value of
$41.0 million. The cash consideration, net of cash acquired totaled $239.4 million for the remaining shares. Of this amount, $8.5
million was retained in an escrow account as of December 31, 2020 which is expected to be fully utilized to cover claims for breach
of any representations, warranties or indemnities.

The acquisition date fair value of the minority interest investment was $52.7 million and a gain of $11.7 million was recorded in
restructuring, acquisition, integration and other, net in the accompanying consolidated statement of income. The fair value of the
minority interest investment was determined using an implied purchase price reduced by a 20% control premium.

We incurred $2.5 million acquisition related costs to effect the business combination, of which $1.8 million was incurred during the
year ended December 31, 2020, and are included in restructuring, acquisition, integration and other, net. Revenue and earnings in
the reporting period since the acquisition date have not been significant.

The allocation of the purchase price is preliminary and not yet finalized. The preliminary allocation of the purchase price is based
upon preliminary estimates which used information that was available to management at the time the consolidatett d financial
statements were prepared and these estimates and assumptions are subject to change within the measurement period, up to one year
from the acquisition date. Accordingly, the allocation may change. We continue to gather information about the fair value of all
assets and liabilities, including intangible assets acquired, and the related deferred taxes.

5. Acquisitions and Divestitures

Business Combinations and Asset Acquisitions
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((iinn tthhoouussaannddss))

AAss ooff DDeecceemmbbeerr 3311,,

22002200

AAss ooff SSeepptteemmbbeerr 3300,,

22002200 DDiiffffeerreennccee

Purchase Price:

Cash consideration $ 251,730 $ 251,730 $ —

Fair value of minority interest 52,727 52,727 —

$ 304,457 $ 304,457 $ —

 

Preliminary Allocation:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 12,291 $ 12,291 $ —

Accounts receivable 5,691 5,691 —

Inventories 20,666 18,866 1,800

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 5,961 5,943 18

Accounts payable (12,450) (11,168) (1,282)

Accruals and other current liabilities (18,929) (18,770) (159)

Other long-term liabilities (4,101) (4,101) —

Fixed and other long-term assets 7,076 6,698 378

Developed technology 101,000 119,100 (18,100)

In-process research and development 55,000 64,800 (9,800)

Patents and license rights 770 770 —

Customer backlog 400 900 (500)

Goodwill 157,627 149,877 7,750

Deferred tax asset 12,457 — 12,457

Deferred tax liability on fair value of identifiable

intangible assets acquired

(39,002) (46,440) 7,438

TToottaal $ 304,457 $ 304,457 $ —

The preliminary purchase price allocation for NeuMoDx as of December 31, 2020 and the difference to September 30, 2020 is as
follows:

The in-process research and development recognized relates to technologies that remain in development and have not yet obtained
regulatory approvals. The technologies within in-process research and development are expected to be completed within the next
three years. The weighted average amortization period for the acquired intangibles is 10 years. The goodwill acquired is not
deductible for tax purposes.
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forma diluted net loss per common share would have been $0.30. These unaudited pro forma results are intended for informational
purposes only and are not necessarily indicative of the results of operations that would have occurred had the acquisition been in
effect at the beginning of the periods presented, or of future results of the combined operations.

2019 Business Combinations

In January 2019, we completed the acquisition of N-of-One, Inc., a privately-held U.S. molecular decision support company and
pioneer in clinical interpretation services for complex genomic data located in Concord, Massachusetts. The cash consideration, net
of cash acquired, was $24.5 million. This acquisition was not significant to the overall consolidated financial statements and as of
December 31, 2019, the allocation of the purchase price was final. The acquisition did not have a material impact to net sales, net
income or earnings per share and therefore no pro forma information has been provided herein.

In the third quarter of 2019, we acquired two additional companies for total cash consideration, net of cash acquired, of $43.5
million. The purchase price allocations for these acquisitions were final as of March 31, 2020. These acquisitions were not
significant to the overall consolidated financial statements and the acquisitions did not have a material impact to net sales, net
income or earnings per share. Thus, no pro forma information has been provided herein.

Other 2018 Business Combination

In April 2018, we acquired all remaining shares of a privately held entity in which we held a minority interest. The value of the
minority interest investment was revalued in connection with the acquisition by $4.8 million and a corresponding gain was recorded
in restructuring, acquisition, integration and other, net in the accompanying consolidated statement of income for the year ended
December 31, 2018. This acquisition was not significant to the overall consolidated financial statements. The acquisition did not
have a material impact to net sales, net income or earnings per share and therefore no pro forma information has been provided
herein.

2019 Asset Acquisition

On January 31, 2019, we acquired the digital PCR asset of Formulatrix, Inc., a developer of laboratory automation solutions. We
paid Formulatrix $125.0 million in cash upon closing. During 2020, we paid the remaining $135.9 million of milestone payments.

Divestitures

In 2019, we sold a portfolio of protein catalysation products for $1.0 million. An immaterial gain was recorded on the sale. In 2018,
we sold a portfolio of veterinary testing products for a total of 15.1 million ($18.5 million), of which 13.4 million ($16.4 million)
was received during 2018 and the remaining 1.7 million ($1.8 million) was collected in 2020. An $8.0 million gain was recorded
on the sale to other income, net in the accompanying consolidated statement of income for the year-ended December 31, 2018.

Pro Forma Results

The following unaudited pro forma information assumes that the above acquisition occurred at the beginning of the periods
presented. For the year ended December 31, 2020, pro forma net sales would have been $1.90 billion, pro forma net income would
have been $347.0 million, and pro forma diluted net income per common share would have been $1.48. For the year ended
December 31, 2019, pro forma net sales would have been $1.53 billion, pro forma net loss would have been $69.1 million and pro
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6. Restructuring and Impairments
As part of our restructuring activities, we incur expenses that qualify as exit and disposal costs under U.S. GAAP including severance
and employee costs as well as contract and other costs, primarily contract termination costs, as well as inventory write-offs and other
implementation costs primarily related to consulting fees. Personnel related costs primarily relate to cash severance and other
termination benefits including accelerated share-based compensation. We also incur expenses that are an integral component of, and
are directly attributable to, our restructuring activities which do not qualify as exit and disposal costs under U.S. GAAP, which consist
of asset-related costs such as intangible asset impairments and other asset related write-offs.

Personnel costs are primarily determined based on established benefit arrangements, local statutory requirements, or historical benefit
practices. We recognize these benefits when payment is probable and estimable. Other benefits which require future service and are
associated to non-recurring benefits are recognized ratably over the future service period. Other assets, including inventory, are
impaired or written-off if the carrying value exceeds the fair value. All other costs are recognized as incurred.

2019 Restructuring

In the second half of 2019, we decided to suspend development of NGS-related instrument systems and entered into a new strategic
partnership with Illumina to commercialize IVD kits worldwide on Illumina's diagnostic sequencers. In order to align our business with
this new strategy, we began restructuring initiatives to target resource allocation to growth opportunities in our Sample to Insight
portfolio.

Impairments to property, plant and equipment primarily impacted computer software and machinery and equipment. Costs incurred to
either purchase software or produce software products and the software components of products to be sold, leased or marketed after
technological feasibility is established were previously capitalized during the development of certain NGS-related instrument systems.
These long-lived assets were fully impaired due to the decision to suspend further development. In addition to computer software,
certain machinery and equipment assets were fully impaired given that these assets had no alternative use following the changes
announced for this program and it was estimated that no value was recoverable in a market disposal.

Due to the suspended development, intangible assets were also assessed for recoverability. The abandoned assets include developed
technology related to the suspended projects as well as the termination of licenses which were used exclusively in connection with this
program. As a result, we recorded intangible asset impairment charges due to the conclusion that the identified assets have no
alternative use outside of the suspended program and thus are fully impaired.

We also conducted an impairment review of inventory and prepaid and other assets and recorded the charges noted in the table
below. As these charges, including inventory, are a direct result of the decision to suspend further development of NGS-related
instrument systems and are not related to external market factors, the impairment charges were recorded in the line item restructuring,
acquisition, integration and other, net in the consolidated statements of income (loss) due to the assets being deemed excess and no
longer utilized due to the discontinued development and related actions discussed above.

In addition, we implemented measures to:

During 2020, certain of the planned measures were delayed during the acquisition attempt by Thermo Fisher or changed as a result
of business needs during the pandemic. The following is a summary of the charges recorded in the consolidated statements of income
(loss) during the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 and total program charges through December 31, 2020.

shift Commercial Operations activities into Business Areas;�

transition manufacturing activities into a regional structure; and�

expand the scope of activities at QIAGEN Business Services (QBS) centers in Wroclaw, Poland and Manila, Philippines�
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(1)  During the year ended December 31, 2019, personnel related and contract termination costs include $2,956 and $15,676,
respectively, due to related parties.

(2)  During the year ended December 31, 2019, accounts receivable and prepaid expenses and other assets includes $5,984 and

$2,270, respectively due from related parties.

CClaassssiiffiiccaattiioonn aanndd TTyyppee ooff CChhaarrggee ((iinn tthhoouussaannddss)) NNoottee 22002200 22001199

TToottaal pprrooggrraamm

cchhaarrggeess tthhrroouugghh

22002200

Restructuring, acquisition, integration and other, net

Personnel related (1) (22) $ 904 $ 70,578 $ 71,482

Contract termination expense (1) 682 42,099 42,781

Consulting fees 1,153 10,150 11,303

Accounts receivable (2) (622) 10,825 10,203

Inventories 1,014 12,336 13,350

Prepaid expenses and other assets (2) 127 17,012 17,139

3,258 163,000 166,258

Long-lived asset impairments

Property, plant and equipment (9) 1,034 98,472 99,506

Intangible assets (11) – 40,301 40,301

1,034 138,773 139,807

Other income, net

Equity method investment impairment (10) – 4,799 4,799

 

TToottaal $ 4,292 $ 306,572 $ 310,864

Of the total costs incurred, $11.2 million and $60.2 million are accrued as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, in
accrued and other current liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets as summarized in the following table that
includes the cash components of the restructuring activity.
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During 2018, fixed asset impairments of $1.6 million were recorded in connection with this initiative and are included within long-
lived asset impairments in the accompanying consolidated statement of income.

Future pre-tax costs between $5 - $10 million are expected to be incurred, primarily related to personnel and consulting, in the first
half of 2021.

2017 Restructuring

We initiated restructuring initiatives in 2017 to mitigate the negative impacts stemming from the U.S. tax reform. Total pre-tax costs
for the initiatives, which concluded in 2018, were $24.4 million. Cumulative costs for this program were as follows:

((iinn tthhoouussaannddss))

PPeerrssoonnnneel

RReelaatteedd

CCoonnttrraacctt aanndd

OOtthheerr CCoossttss

Innvveennttoorryy

WWrriittee-ooffffss &&

AAsssseett

Immppaaiirrmmeennttss TToottaal

Cost of sales $ — $ — $ 3,039 $ 3,039

Restructuring, acquisition, integration and other, net 6,174 4,583 — 10,757

Total 2017 costs 6,174 4,583 3,039 13,796

Cost of sales 424 1,193 — 1,617

Restructuring, acquisition, integration and other, net 4,207 4,232 1,610 10,049

Total 2018 costs 4,631 5,425 1,610 11,666

Restructuring, acquisition, integration and other, net (1,100) — — (1,100)

Total 2019 releases (1,100) — — (1,100)

TToottaal ccuummuulaattiivvee ccoossttss $ 9,705 $ 10,008 $ 4,649 $ 24,362

(iinn tthhoouussaannddss))

PPeerrssoonnnneel

RReelaatteedd

CCoonnttrraacctt

TTeerrmmiinnaattiioonn

CCoonnssuulttiinngg

FFeeeess TToottaal

Costs incurred in 2019 $ 44,640 $ 42,099 $ 10,150 $ 96,889

Payments (17,272) (18,294) (2,162) (37,728)

Foreign currency translation adjustment 631 493 (53) 1,071

Liability at December 31, 2019 $ 27,999 $ 24,298 $ 7,935 $ 60,232

Additional costs incurred in 2020 4,542 1,639 1,661 7,842

Release of excess accrual (3,638) (957) (508) (5,103)

Payments (24,355) (18,319) (9,028) (51,702)

Foreign currency translation adjustment 139 (230) (12) (103)

Liability at December 31, 2020 $ 4,687 $ 6,431 $ 48 $ 11,166
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At December 31, 2020, short-term investments include the fair value of our marketable equity securities totaling $117.2 million.

These investments, further discussed in Note 10 "Investments", are reported at fair value with gains and losses recorded in earnings.

At December 31, 2019 we had $129.6 million ($65.0 million and 57.5 million) of money market deposits, commercial paper and
loan receivables due from financial and nonfinancial institutions. These instruments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market and are carried at fair market value, which is equal to the cost. All
instruments are classified as current assets in the accompanying balance sheet as they either have a maturity of less than one year or
are redeemable at our discretion. Interest income is determined using the effective interest rate method.

8. Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets
Prepaid expenses and other current assets are summarized as follows as of December 31, 2020 and 2019:

((iinn tthhoouussaannddss)) NNootteess 22002200 22001199

Prepaid expenses $ 61,159 $ 39,930

Cash collateral (14) 56,100 2,683

Other receivables 32,901 29,486

Value added tax 31,128 20,347

Loan receivables 17,094 7,539

Contract assets (4) 8,539 5,479

TToottaal pprreeppaaiidd eexxppeennsseess aanndd ootthheerr ccuurrrreenntt aasssseettss $ 206,921 $ 105,464

7. Short-Term Investments
As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, short-term investments consisted of the following:

((iinn tthhoouussaannddss)) 22002200 22001199

Marketable equity securities $ 117,249 $  —

Money market deposits — 87,468

Commercial paper — 22,459

Loans receivable — 19,659

TToottaal $ 117,249 $ 129,586



157

F inanc ia l  Re su l t s   ›   Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

During the year ended December 31, 2020, $1.0 million of impairments were related to the 2019 Restructuring program discussed

in Note 6 "Restructuring and Impairments". In 2019, $98.5 million of impairments were related to the 2019 Restructuring program
while the remaining $1.2 million were related to other identified impairments during the year. In 2018, we recorded asset
impairment charges of $7.9 million of internal-use software of which $1.6 million were related to the 2017 Restructuring program
discussed in Note 6 and $6.3 million were related to strategic shifts in our business.

For the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018 depreciation and amortization expense totaled $78.6 million, $86.0
million and $87.9 million, respectively. For the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018 amortization related to computer
software to be sold, leased or marketed totaled $7.4 million, $18.3 million and $17.2 million, respectively. Impairment charges
related to computer software to be sold, leased or marketed are included in computer software and construction in progress in the
table above and totaled $65.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2019. As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the
unamortized balance of computer software to be sold, leased or marketed was $50.5 million and $36.6 million, respectively.

9. Propertytt , Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment of December 31, 2020 and 2019 were as follows:

((iinn tthhoouussaannddss))

EEssttiimmaatteedd uusseeffuul

liiffee ((iinn yyeeaarrss)) 22002200 22001199

Land — $ 18,903 $ 17,684

Buildings and improvements 5-40 362,902 341,032

Machinery and equipment 3-10 322,379 292,294

Computer software 3-7 260,730 301,604

Furniture and office equipment 3-10 108,339 102,901

Construction in progress — 116,562 98,858

1,189,815 1,154,373

Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization (630,443) (699,130)

Property, plant and equipment, net $ 559,372 $ 455,243

In 2019, we began restructuring initiatives to target resource allocation to growth opportunities in our Sample to Insight portfolio and
in connection therewith, we recorded impairments. Asset impairment charges for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and
2018 were as follows:

((iinn tthhoouussaannddss)) 22002200 22001199 22001188

Machinery and equipment $ 77 $ 9,177 $ —

Computer software — 44,649 2,911

Furniture and office equipment 315 4,030 —

Construction in progress 642 41,870 4,979

TToottaal iimmppaaiirrmmeenntt iinn pprrooppeerrttyy,, pplaanntt aanndd eeqquuiippmmeenntt $ 1,034 $ 99,726 $ 7,890
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Repairs and maintenance expense was $13.8 million, $10.7 million and $12.1 million in 2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively. For
the year ended December 31, 2020, construction in progress primarily includes amounts related to projects to expand production
lines as well as increase capacity of manufacturing as well as ongoing software development projects. For the years ended December
31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, interest capitalized in connection with construction projects was not significant.

10. Investments

Marketable Equity Securities

We hold investments in marketable equity securities that have readily determinable fair values. Since January 1, 2018, these
investments are reported at fair value with gains and losses recorded in earnings.

As of December 31, 2020, our investments in marketable equity securities totaled $117.5 million, of which $117.2 million are
included in short-term investments and $0.3 million are included in other long-term assets in the accompanying consolidated balance
sheet, as follows:

In 2020, HTGM completed a 15:1 reverse stock split.

In 2020, we received 2.4 million shares of Invitae as part of the initial consideration for the sale of our ArcherDX shares, followed by
an earn-out of an additional 0.4 million Invitae shares. Additionally in 2020, we received 0.1 million shares in OncoCyte. These
transactions are discussed further below. In February 2021, we sold 2.4 million shares of Invitae for $101.5 million.

During the year ended December 31, 2020, unrealized losses recognized for the change in fair market value of all marketable equity
securities totaled $5.7 million of which $5.4 million is attributable to short-term investments and $0.3 million to long-term investments.

As of December 31, 2019, these marketable securities are included in other long-term assets in the accompanying consolidated
balance sheet as follows:

((iinn tthhoouussaannddss,, eexxcceepptt sshhaarreess hheeldd))

SShhoorrtt-TTeerrmm LLoonngg-TTeerrmm

Innvviittaaee

CCoorrppoorraattiioonn

((Innvviittaaee))

OOnnccooCCyyttee

CCoorrppoorraattiioonn

((OOnnccooCCyyttee))

OOnncciimmmmuunnee

HHoolddiinnggss pplcc

((OOnncciimmmmuunnee))

HHTTGG MMooleeccuulaarr

DDiiaaggnnoossttiiccss,, Inncc

((HHTTGGMM))

Shares held 2,769,189 88,101 560,416 55,556

Cost basis $ — $ — $ — $ 2,000

Fair value $ 115,780 $ 211 $ 1,258 $ 266

Total cumulative unrealized gain (loss) $ 115,780 $ 211 $ 1,258 $ (1,734)
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During 2019, we received 0.6 million shares in Oncimmune in settlement of a zero-book value financial instrument held with a third
party. On the date of receipt, these shares held a fair value of $0.7 million which was recorded as a gain in other income, net for

(iinn tthhoouussaannddss,, eexxcceepptt sshhaarreess hheeldd))

LLoonngg-TTeerrmm

OOnncciimmmmuunnee HHTTGGMM

Shares held 560,416 833,333

Cost basis $ — $ 2,000

Fair value $ 285 $ 585

Total cumulative unrealized gain (loss) $ 285 $ (1,415)

((iinn tthhoouussaannddss))

OOwwnneerrsshhiipp

PPeerrcceennttaaggee

EEqquuiittyy iinnvveessttmmeennttss

aass ooff DDeecceemmbbeerr 3311,,

SShhaarree ooff iinnccoommee ((loossss)) ffoorr tthhee

yyeeaarrss eennddeedd DDeecceemmbbeerr 3311,,

22002200 22001199 22002200 22001199 22001188

PreAnalytiX GmbH 50.00 % $ 4,761 $ 5,452 $ 3,070 $ 3,971 $ 4,062

Suzhou Fuda Business Management and Consulting

Partnership

33.67 % 3,301 3,100 — — —

Apis Assay Technologies Ltd 19.00 % 1,940 719 1,221 (51) —

TVM Life Science Ventures III 3.10 % 1,545 1,219 630 (330) —

Hombrechtikon Systems Engineering AG 19.00 % (530) (761) 97 (1,124) (668)

MAQGEN Biotechnology Co., Ltd 40.00 % — — — (383) (579)

Biotype Innovation GmbH 0.00 % — — — — (123)

Pyrobett 0.00 % — — — — (100)

$ 11,017 $ 9,729 $ 5,018 $ 2,083 $ 2,592

the year ended December 31, 2019.

During the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 unrealized losses recognized for the change in fair market value of all
marketable equity securities totaled $2.1 million and $0.1 million, respectively.

Non-Marketable Investments

We have made strategic investments in certain privately-held companies without readily determinable market values.

Non-Marketable Investments Accounted for Under the Equity Method

A summary of our non-marketable investments accounted for as equity method investments is as follows:
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TVM Life Science Ventures III is a limited partnership and we account for our 3.1% investment under the equity method as we have
the ability to exercise significant influence over the limited partnership. Of the $11.0 million of non-marketable investments accounted
for as equity method investments, $11.5 million is included in other long-term assets and $0.5 million, where we are committed to
fund losses, is included in other long-term liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2020.

During the year ended December 31, 2019, we recorded an impairment of $4.8 million in other income, net in the accompanying
consolidated statements of income, following changes in circumstances of MAQGEN Biotechnology Co., Ltd that indicated the
carrying value was no longer recoverable. Accordingly, the investment was fully impaired.

In 2018, we recorded impairments totaling $6.1 million in other income, net in the accompanying consolidated statements of income,
following changes in the investees' circumstances that indicated the carrying value was no longer recoverable.

Three of our equity method investments are variable interest entities and we are not the primary beneficiary as we do not hold the
power to direct the activities that most significantly impact the economic performance. Therefore, these investments are not
consolidated. As of December 31, 2020, these investments had a total net carrying value of $3.0 million, of which $3.5 million is

included in other long-term assets and $0.5 million is included in other long-term liabilities in the accompanying consolidated
balance sheet. As of December 31, 2019, these investments held a balance of $1.2 million, of which $1.9 million is included in
other long-term assets and $0.8 million is included in other long-term liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet.
These balances represent our maximum exposure to loss.

Non-Marketable Investments Not Accounted for Under the Equity Method

At December 31, 2020 and 2019, we had investments in non-publicly traded companies that do not have readily determinable fair
values with carrying amounts that totaled $4.1 million and $70.8 million, respectively. The changes in these investments which are
measured at cost, less any impairment, plus or minus changes resulting from observable price changes in orderly transactions for the
identical or a similar investment of the same issuer for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

((iinn tthhoouussaannddss)) 22002200 22001199

Balance at beginning of year $ 70,849 $ 59,484

Full acquisition of equity securities (41,001) —

Sale of equity securities (23,812) —

Loss on sale of equity securities (2,250) —

Impairments (398) —

Cash investments in equity securities, net 173 3,619

Net increases due to observable price changes — 7,760

Foreign currency translation adjustments 581 (14)

Balance at end of year $ 4,142 $ 70,849
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2020 Changes in Non-Marketable Investments Not Accounted for Under the Equity

Method

During 2020, we acquired the remaining shares of NeuMoDx as further discussed in Note 5 "Acquisitions and Divestitures".

In 2020, Invitae Corporation ("Invitae"), a publicly traded company (NVTA), completed the acquisition of ArcherDX, Inc.
("ArcherDX"), a company in which we held an approximate 8% investment. In exchange for our shares in ArcherDX, we initially
received cash of $21.1 million and 2.4 million shares in Invitae followed by an additional 0.4 million shares for milestone
achievement. For the year ended December 31, 2020, we recognized a total gain of $123.3 million in other income, net in the
accompanying consolidated statement of income as a result of this transaction. We are entitled to up to 1.7 million additional Invitae
shares subject to milestone achievement.

We sold an investment with a carrying value of $2.5 million in exchange for cash of $0.3 million including the shares in OncoCyte,
as discussed above. A loss of $2.3 million was recognized in other income, net in the accompanying consolidated statement of
income on the sale of this investment.

We sold another investment for its book value and received $3.7 million in cash.
In 2020, we recorded a $0.4 million impairment in other income, net in the accompanying consolidated statement of income due
following indications that the carrying value was no longer recoverable. Accordingly, the investment was fully impaired.

For non-marketable investments not accounted for under the equity method as of December 31, 2020, cumulative upward adjustments
for price changes was $0.7 million. These adjustments were due to equity offerings at a higher price from the issuer in orderly
transactions for identical or similar investments as those we hold.

11. Goodwill and Intangible Assets
The following sets forth the intangible assets by major asset class as of December 31, 2020 and 2019:

((iinn tthhoouussaannddss))

WWeeiigghhtteedd

AAvveerraaggee LLiiffee((iinn

yyeeaarrss))

22002200 22001199

GGrroossss CCaarrrryyiinngg

AAmmoouunntt

AAccccuummuulaatteedd

AAmmoorrttiizzaattiioonn

GGrroossss CCaarrrryyiinngg

AAmmoouunntt

AAccccuummuulaatteedd

AAmmoorrttiizzaattiioonn

Amortized Intangible Assets:

Patent and license rights 10.50 $ 298,395 $ (197,038) $ 320,406 $ (216,554)

Developed technology 10.74 860,129 (378,705) 766,966 (346,085)

Customer base, trademarks, and non-

compete agreements

12.02 314,876 (233,981) 314,638 (213,881)

10.86 $ 1,473,400 $ (809,724) $ 1,402,010 $ (776,520)

Unamortized Intangible Assets:

In-process research and development $ 62,518 $ 6,944

Goodwill 2,364,031 2,140,503

$ 2,426,549 $ 2,147,447
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Cash paid for purchases of intangible assets during the twelve months ended December 31, 2020 totaled $171.5 million, of which
$146.1 million is related to current year payments for assets that were accrued as of December 31, 2019, $24.0 million of current
year additions and $1.4 million for prepayments recorded in other long-term assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet.

Cash paid for intangible assets during the year ended December 31, 2019 totaled $156.9 million of which $11.5 million is related
to current year payments for licenses that were accrued as of December 31, 2018 and $0.5 million is related to prepayments
recorded in other long-term assets in accompanying consolidated balance sheet. Intangible asset additions of $286.2 million includes
$144.9 million of cash paid during the year ended December 31, 2019, together with $137.8 million of additions that were accrued
as of December 31, 2019 and $3.5 million of additions which were previously recorded as prepayments.

Amortization expense on intangible assets totaled approximately $103.2 million, $122.6 million and $118.6 million, respectively,
for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018. During the year ended December 31, 2019, we recorded an impairment

charge of $40.3 million related to the restructuring activities discussed further in Note 6 "Restructuring and Impairments" of which
$28.1 million is related to patent and license rights and $12.1 million is related to developed technology.

The in-process research and development as of December 31, 2020 is associated to the acquisitions of NeuMoDx in 2020 and STAT-
Dx in 2018. The estimated fair value of acquired in-process research and development projects which have not reached technological
feasibility at the date of acquisition are capitalized and subsequently tested for impairment through completion of the development
process, at which point the capitalized amounts are amortized over their estimated useful life. If a project is abandoned rather than
completed, all capitalized amounts are written-off immediately.

Developed technology includes the acquired intangibles from NeuMoDx and the digital PCR asset from Formulatrix as discussed in

Note 5 "Acquisitions and Divestitures" which are both being amortized over 10 years.

The changes in intangible assets for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

((iinn tthhoouussaannddss)) 22002200 22001199

Balance at beginning of year $ 632,434 $ 475,043

Additions 24,007 286,159

Additions from acquisitions 157,170 36,458

Amortization (103,230) (122,560)

Disposals (537) –

Impairments – (40,301)

Foreign currency translation adjustments 16,350 (2,365)

Balance at end of year $ 726,194 $ 632,434
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The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill during the year ended December 31, 2020 resulted primarily from the acquisition of

NeuMoDx discussed in Note 5 "Acquisitions and Divestitures" and changes in foreign currency translation. The changes in goodwill
during the year ended December 31, 2019 resulted primarily from the acquisition of N-of-One, Inc. and other acquisitions and

divestitures also discussed in Note 5 "Acquisitions and Divestitures" and changes in foreign currency translation.

12. Leases
We have operating leases primarily for real estate. The leases generally have terms which range from one year to 15 years, some
include options to extend or renew, and some include options to early terminate the leases. As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, no
such options have been recognized as part of the right-of-use assets and lease liabilities.

Operating leases can contain variable lease charges based on an index like consumer prices or rates. During the year ended
December 31, 2020 and 2019, amounts recorded as variable lease payments not included in the operating lease liability were not
material.

When the interest rate implicit in each lease is not readily determinable, we apply our incremental borrowing rate in determining the
present value of lease payments. All operating lease expense is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term. For the years
ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, we recognized $25.0 million and $24.4 million in total lease costs, respectively.

The changes in goodwill for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

((iinn tthhoouussaannddss)) 22002200 22001199

Balance at beginning of year $ 2,140,503 $ 2,108,536

Business combinations 157,627 34,807

Purchase adjustments 3,382 (236)

Disposals — (225)

Foreign currency translation adjustments 62,519 (2,379)

Balance at end of year $ 2,364,031 $ 2,140,503

((iinn tthhoouussaannddss)) AAmmoorrttiizzaattiioonn

Years ended December 31:

2021 $ 103,485

2022 $ 89,734

2023 $ 87,355

2024 $ 83,520

2025 $ 71,130

Amortization of intangibles for the next five years is expected to be approximately:
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As of December 31, 2020, we do not have any material operating leases that have not yet commenced. We did not hold any
material finance leases as of December 31, 2020 and 2019.

Supplemental cash flow information related to operating leases for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

YYeeaarrss eennddiinngg DDeecceemmbbeerr 3311,, ((iinn tthhoouussaannddss))

2021 $ 25,353

2022 20,993

2023 16,280

2024 10,790

2025 6,707

Thereafter 36,878

Total lease payments 117,001

Less: imputed interest (7,966)

Total $ 109,035

Supplemental balance sheet and other information related to operating leases as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

((iinn tthhoouussaannddss,, eexxcceepptt leeaassee tteerrmm aanndd ddiissccoouunntt rraattee)) LLooccaattiioonn iinn bbaalaannccee sshheeeett 22002200 22001199

Operating lease right-of-use assets Other long-term assets $  102,522 $ 57,305

Current operating lease liabilities Accrued and other current liabilities $  23,450 $ 18,739

Long-term operating lease liabilities Other long-term liabilities $  85,585 $ 39,631

    

Weighted average remaining lease term 7.04 years 3.71 years

Weighted average discount rate 1.89 % 2.39 %

((iinn tthhoouussaannddss)) 22002200 22001199

Cash paid for operating leases included in operating cash flows $ 24,193 $ 26,113

Operating lease right-of-use assets obtained in exchange for lease obligations $ 58,992 $ 24,670

Future maturities of operating lease liabilities as of December 31, 2020 are as follows:
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((iinn tthhoouussaannddss)) NNoottee 22002200 22001199

Payroll and related accruals $ 99,085 $ 66,866

Other liabilities 67,244 54,241

Deferred revenue (4) 57,066 48,525

Accrued expenses 51,026 38,963

Accrued contingent consideration and milestone payments (15) 23,593 142,604

Operating lease liabilities (12) 23,450 18,739

Restructuring (6) 11,599 62,227

Accrued royalties (20) 7,427 5,481

Accrued interest on long-term debt (16) 4,575 5,257

Cash collateral (14) 600 1,400

Total accrued and otoo her current liabilities $ 345,665 $ 444,303

13. Accrued and Other Current Liabilities
Accrued and other current liabilities at December 31, 2020 and 2019 consist of the following:

14. Derivatives and Hedging

Objective and Strategy

In the ordinary course of business, we use derivative instruments, including swaps, forwards and/or options, to manage potential
losses from foreign currency exposures and interest bearing assets or liabilities. The principal objective of such derivative instruments
is to minimize the risks and/or costs associated with our global financial and operating activities. We do not utilize derivative or
other financial instruments for trading or other speculative purposes. We recognize all derivatives as either assets or liabilities on the
balance sheet on a gross basis, measure those instruments at fair value and recognize the change in fair value in earnings in the
period of change, unless the derivative qualifies as an effective hedge that offsets certain exposures. We have agreed with almost all
of our counterparties with whom we had entered into cross-currency swaps, interest rate swaps or foreign exchange contracts, to
enter into bilateral collateralization contracts under which we will receive or provide cash collateral, as the case may be, for the net
position with each of these counterparties. As of December 31, 2020, cash collateral posititt ons consisted of $0.6 million recorded in
accrued and other current liabilities and $56.1 million recorded in prepaid expenses and other current assets. As of December 31,
2019, we had cash collateral positions consisting of $1.4 million recorded in accrued and other current liabilities and $2.7 million
recorded in prepaid expenses and other current assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Non-Derivative Hedging Instrument

Net Investment Hedge

In 2017, we entered into a foreign currency non-derivative hedging instrument that is designated and qualifies as net investment
hedge. The objective of the hedge is to protect part of the net investment in foreign operations against adverse changes in the
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loss. Based on the spot rate method, the unrealized loss recorded in equity as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 is $26.9 million and
$0.4 million, respectively. Since we are using the debt as the hedging instrument, which is also remeasured based on the spot rate
method, there is no hedge ineffectiveness related to the net investment hedge as of December 31, 2020 and 2019.

Derivatives Designated as Hedging Instruments

Cash Flow Hedges

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, we held derivative instruments that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges, where the
effective portion of the gain or loss on the derivative is reported as a component of other comprehensive loss and reclassified into
earnings in the same period or periods during which the hedged transaction affects earnings. Gains and losses on the derivative
representing either hedge ineffectiveness or hedge components excluded from the assessment of effectiveness are recognized in
current earnings. To date, we have not recorded any hedge ineffectiveness related to any cash-flow hedges in earnings. Based on
their valuation as of December 31, 2020, we expect approximately $3.6 million of derivative losses included in accumulated other
comprehensive loss will be reclassified into income during the next 12 months. The cash flows derived from derivatives are classified
in the consolidated statements of cash flows in the same category as the consolidated balance sheets account of the underlying item.

We use interest rate derivative contracts to align our portfolio of interest bearing assets and liabilities with our risk management
objectives. During 2015, we entered into five cross currency interest rate swaps through 2025 for a total notional amount of 180.0
million which qualify for hedge accounting as cash flow hedges. We determined that no ineffectiveness exists related to these swaps.
As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, interest receivables of $1.1 million and $1.5 million, respectively are recorded in prepaid
expenses and other current assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Fair Value Hedges

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, we held derivative instruments that qualify for hedge accounting as fair value hedges. For
derivative instruments that are designated and qualify as a fair value hedge, the effective portion of the gain or loss on the derivative
is reflected in earnings. This effect on earnings is offset by the change in the fair value of the hedged item attributable to the risk
being hedged that is also recorded in earnings. To date, there has been no ineffectiveness. The cash flows derived from derivatives
are classified in the consolidated statements of cash flows in the same category as the consolidated balance sheets account of the
underlying item.

We hold interest rate swaps which effectively fix the fair value of a portion of our fixed rate private placement debt and qualify for
hedge accounting as fair value hedges. We determined that no ineffectiveness exists related to these swaps. As of December 31,
2020 and 2019, interest receivables of $0.6 million and $0.1 million, respectively, are recorded in prepaid and other current assets
in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Derivatives Not Designated as Hedging Instruments

Call Options

We entered into Call Options which, along with the sale of the Warrants, represent the Call Spread Overlay entered into in

connection with the Cash Convertible Notes and which are more fully described in Note 16 "Debt". In these transactions, the Call
Options are intended to address the equity price risk inherent in the cash conversion feature of each instrument by offsetting cash
payments in excess of the principal amount due upon any conversion of the Cash Convertible Notes.

exchange rate between the Euro and the functional currency of the U.S. dollar. The non-derivative hedging instrument is the German

private corporate bond ("Schuldschein") which was issued in the total amount of $331.1 million as described in Note 16 "Debt". Of
the $331.1 million, which is held in both U.S. dollars and Euros, 255.0 million is designated as the hedging instrument against a
portion of our Euro net investments in our foreign operations. The relative changes in both the hedged item and hedging instrument
are calculated by applying the change in spot rate between two assessment dates against the respective notional amount. The
effective portion of the hedge is recorded in the cumulative translation adjustment account within other accumulated comprehensive
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The Call Options, for which our common stock is the underlying security, are derivative assets that requires mark-to-market accounting
treatment due to the cash settlement features until the Call Options settle or expire. The Call Options are measured and reported at
fair value on a recurring basis, within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. For further discussion of the inputs used to determine the fair

value of the Call Options, refer to Note 15 "Financial Instruments and Fair Value Measurements".

The Call Options do not qualify for hedge accounting treatment. Therefore, the change in fair value of these instruments is recognized
immediately in our consolidated statements of income (loss) in other income, net. Because the terms of the Call Options are
substantially similar to those of the Cash Convertible Notes' embedded cash conversion option, discussed below, we expect the effect
on earnings from the two derivative instruments to mostly offset each other.

Cash Convertible Notes Embedded Cash Conversion Option

The embedded cash conversion option within the Cash Convertible Notes discussed in Note 16 "Debt" is required to be separated
from the Cash Convertible Notes and accounted for separately as a derivative liability, with changes in fair value reported in our
consolidated statements of income (loss) in other income, net until the cash conversion option settles or expires. The embedded cash
conversion option is measured and reported at fair value on a recurring basis, within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. For further

discussion of the inputs used to determine the fair value of the embedded cash conversion option, refer to Note 15 "Financial

Instruments and Fair Value Measurements".

Embedded Conversion Option

During 2017, we purchased a convertible note for $3.0 million from a publicly listed company considered a related party. The
embedded conversion option within the convertible note was required to be separated from the convertible note and accounted for
separately as a derivative liability, with changes in fair value reported in our consolidated statements of income (loss) in other
income, net. The embedded cash conversion option was measured and reported at fair value on a recurring basis, within Level 2 of
the fair value hierarchy. During 2020, $3.2 million was collected including the principal including accrued interest. For further

discussion of the inputs used to determine the fair value of the embedded cash conversion option, refer to Note 15 "Financial

Instruments and Fair Value Measurements".

Foreign Exchange Contracts

As a globally active enterprise, we are subject to risks associated with fluctuations in foreign currencies in our ordinary operations.
This includes foreign currency-denominated receivables, payables, debt, and other balance sheet positions including intercompany
items. We manage balance sheet exposure on a group-wide basis using foreign exchange forward contracts, foreign exchange
options and cross-currency swaps.

We are party to various foreign exchange forward, option and swap arrangements which had, at December 31, 2020 and 2019,
aggregate notional values of $1.3 billion and $701.4 million, respectively which expire at various dates through March 2021. The
transactions have been entered into to offset the effects from short-term balance sheet exposure to foreign currency exchange risk.
Changes in the fair value of these arrangements have been recognized in other income, net.

Fair Values of Derivative Instruments

The following table summarizes the fair value amounts of derivative instruments reported in the consolidated balance sheets as of
December 31, 2020 and 2019:

Aside from the initial payment of premiums for the Call Options, we will not be required to make any cash payments under the Call
Options. We will, however, be entitled to receive under the terms of the Call Options, an amount of cash generally equal to the
amount by which the market price per share of our common stock exceeds the exercise price of the Call Options during the relevant
valuation period. The exercise price under the Call Options is equal to the conversion price of the Cash Convertible Notes.
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(1) The fair value amounts for the interest rate contracts do not include accrued interest.

(in thousands)(in thousands)

20202020 20192019

Current LiabilityCurrent Liability

Long-TermLong-Term

LiabilityLiability Current LiabilityCurrent Liability

Long-TermLong-Term

LiabilityLiability

Interest rate contracts - cash flow hedge (1) $ — $ (17,409) $ — $ (6,027)

Total derivative instruments designated as hedges $ — $ (17,409) $ — $  (6,027)

Equity options $ (5,966) $ (376,046) $ (101,361) $ (190,902)

Foreign exchange forwards and options (45,498) — (1,814) —

Total undesignated derivative instruments $ (51,464) $ (376,046) $ (103,175) $ (190,902)

$ (51,464) $ (393,455) $ (103,175) $ (196,929)

(in thousands)(in thousands)

20202020 20192019

Current AssetCurrent Asset Long-Term AssetLong-Term Asset Current AssetCurrent Asset Long-Term AssetLong-Term Asset

Interest rate contracts - fair value hedge (1) $ — $ 5,042 $ — $ 2,474

Total derivative instruments designated as hedges $ — $ 5,042 $ — $ 2,474

Equity options $ 2,415 $ 374,038 $ 101,179 $ 189,792

Foreign exchange forwards and options 11,712 — 6,689 —

Total undesignated derivative instruments $ 14,127 $ 374,038 $ 107,868 $ 189,792

$ 14,127 $ 379,080 $ 107,868 $ 192,266
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((iinn tthhoouussaannddss))

22002200 22001199 22001188

OOtthheerr iinnccoommee,, nneett OOtthheerr iinnccoommee,, nneett OOtthheerr iinnccoommee,, nneett

Total amounts presented in the Consolidated Statements of Income in

which the effects of cash flow and fair value hedges are recorded

$ 114,326 $ 432 $ 5,598

Interest rate contracts

Amount of gain (loss) reclassified from accumulated other

comprehensive loss

$ 18,666 $ (3,888) $ (9,774)

Amounts excluded from effectiveness testing — — —

Interest rate contracts

Hedged item (2,568) (3,668) 2,051

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments 2,568 3,668 (2,051)

Embedded conversion option — (349) 131

Equity options 322,580 (104,125) 74,682

Cash convertible notes embedded cash conversion option (321,213) 106,998 (76,500)

Foreign exchange forwards and options (12,429) 1,835 (19,857)

$ 7,604 $ 471 $ (31,318)

Gains and Losses on Derivative Instruments

The following tables summarize the gains and losses on derivative instruments for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and
2018:



170

((iinn tthhoouussaannddss))

CCaarrrryyiinngg AAmmoouunntt ooff tthhee HHeeddggeedd AAsssseettss

((LLiiaabbiiliittiieess))

CCuummuulaattiivvee AAmmoouunntt ooff FFaaiirr VVaaluuee

HHeeddggiinngg AAddjjuussttmmeenntt Innccluuddeedd iinn tthhee

CCaarrrryyiinngg AAmmoouunntt ooff HHeeddggeedd AAsssseettss

((LLiiaabbiiliittiieess))

22002200 22001199 22002200 22001199

Long-term debt $ (131,923) $ (129,290) $ 5,042 $ 2,474

Balance Sheet Line Items in which the Hedged Item is Included

The following tables summarizes the balance sheet line items in which the hedged item is included as of December 31, 2020 and
2019:

15. Financial Instruments and Fair Value Measurements
Assets and liabilities are measured at fair value according to a three-tier fair value hierarchy which prioritizes the inputs used in
measuring fair value as follows:

Our assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis consist of marketable securities discussed in Note 10

"Investments", which are classified in Level 1, short-term investments, which are classified in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy,
derivative contracts used to hedge currency and interest rate risk and derivative financial instruments entered into in connection with

the Cash Convertible Notes discussed in Note 16 "Debt", which are classified in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy, contingent
consideration accruals which are classified in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, and are shown in the tables below and non-
marketable equity securities remeasured during the year ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 are classified within Level 3 in the fair
value hierarchy. There were no transfers between levels for the year ended December 31, 2020.

In determining fair value for Level 2 instruments, we apply a market approach, using quoted active market prices relevant to the
particular instrument under valuation, giving consideration to the credit risk of both the respective counterparty to the contract and the
Company. To determine our credit risk, we estimated our credit rating by benchmarking the price of outstanding debt to publicly-
available comparable data from rated companies. Using the estimated rating, our credit risk was quantified by reference tott publicly-
traded debt with a corresponding rating. The Level 2 derivative financial instruments include the Call Options asset and the

embedded conversion option liability. See Note 16 "Debt", and Note 14 "Derivatives and Hedging", for further information. The
derivatives are not actively traded and are valued based on an option pricing model that uses observable market data for inputs.
Significant market data inputs used to determine fair values included our common stock price, the risk-free interest rate, and the
implied volatility of our common stock. The Call Options asset and the embedded cash conversion option liability were designed with
the intent that changes in their fair values would substantially offset, with limited net impact to our earnings. Therefore, the sensitivity
of changes in the unobservable inputs to the option pricing model for such instruments is substantially mitigated.

Our Level 3 instruments include non-marketable equity security investments. Under the measurement alternative, the carrying value is
measured at cost, less any impairment, plus or minus changes resulting from observable price changes in orderly transactions for
identical or similar investments of thtt e same issuer. Adjustments are determined primarily based on a market approach as of the
transaction date.

Level 1. Observable inputs, such as quoted prices in active markets;

Level 2. Inputs, other than the quoted price in active markets, that are observable either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3. Unobservable inputs in which there is little or no market data, which require the reporting entity to develop its own

assumptions.
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The following table presents our fair value hierarchy for our financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis
as of December 31, 2020 and 2019:

(iinn

tthhoouussaannddss))

22002200 22001199

LLeevveel 11 LLeevveel 22 LLeevveel 33 TToottaal LLeevveel 11 LLeevveel 22 LLeevveel 33 TToottaal

Short-term

investments

$ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ 129,586 $ — $ 129,586

Marketable

equity

securities

117,515 — — 117,515 870 — — 870

Non-

marketable

equity

securities

— — 4,142 4,142 — — 70,849 70,849

Equity

options

— 376,453 — 376,453 — 290,971 — 290,971

Foreign

exchange

forwards and

options

— 11,712 — 11,712 — 6,689 — 6,689

Interest rate

contracts

— 5,042 — 5,042 — 2,474 — 2,474

$ 117,515 $ 393,207 $ 4,142 $ 514,864 $ 870 $ 429,720 $ 70,849 $ 501,439

Foreign

exchange

forwards and

options

$ — $ (45,498) $ — $ (45,498) $  — $  (1,814) $  — $  (1,814)

Interest rate

contracts

— (17,409) — (17,409) — (6,027) — (6,027)

Equity

options

— (382,012) — (382,012) — (292,263) — (292,263)

Our Level 3 instruments also include contingent consideration liabilities. We value contingent consideration liabilities using
unobservable inputs, applying the income approach, such as the discounted cash flow technique, or the probability-weighted
scenario method. Contingent consideration arrangements obligate us to pay the sellers of an acquired entity if specified future events
occur or conditions are met such as the achievement of technological or revenue milestones. We use various key assumptions, such as
the probability of achievement of the milestones (0% to 100%) and the discount rate (between 6.5% and 6.9%), to represent the non-
performing risk factors and time value when applying the income approach. We regularly review the fair value of the contingent
consideration, and reflect any change in the accrual in the consolidated statements of income (loss) in the line items commensurate
with the underlying nature of milestone arrangements.
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As of December 31, 2020, we had $23.6 million accrued for contingent consideration which is included in accrued and other
current liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet. As of December 31, 2020, the $3.2 million of additions is related
to the time value increases of existing contingent consideration liabilities related to both the 2019 asset acquisition of Formulatrix

discussed in Note 5 "Acquisitions and Divestitures" as well as the 2018 acquisition of STAT-Dx. During 2019, a gain for the
reduction in the fair value of contingent consideration related to unmet milestones of $7.4 million was recognized in restructuring,
acquisition, integration and other, net in the accompanying consolidated statements of income (loss) and additions of $132.4 million

primarily related to the asset acquisition of Formulatrix as discussed in Note 5.

The carrying values of financial instruments, including cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable and other
accrued liabilities, approximate their fair values due to their short-term maturities. The estimated fair value of long-term debt as

disclosed in Note 16 "Lines of Credit and Debt" The estimated fair values may not represent actual values of the financial instruments
that could be realized as of the balance sheet date or that will be realized in the future. There were no fair value differences in the
years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 for nonfinancial assets or liabilities required to be measured at fair value on a
nonrecurring basis other than the impairments of non-marketable investments not accounted for under the equity method as discussed

in Note 10.

The table below presents the carrying values and the estimated fair values of financial instruments not presented in the tables above
as of December 31, 2020 and 2019.

((iinn

tthhoouussaannddss))

22002200 22001199

LLeevveel 11 LLeevveel 22 LLeevveel 33 TToottaal LLeevveel 11 LLeevveel 22 LLeevveel 33 TToottaal

Refer to Note 10 "Investments" for the change in non-marketable equity securities with Level 3 inputs during the year ended
December 31, 2020 and 2019. For contingent consideration liabilities with Level 3 inputs, the following table summarizes the activity
for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019:

Contingent

consideration

— — (23,593) (23,593) — — (162,160) (162,160)

$ — $ (444,919) $ (23,593) $ (468,512) — $ (300,104) $ (162,160) $ (462,264)

((iinn tthhoouussaannddss)) 22002200 22001199

Balance at beginning of year $ (162,160) $ (48,971)

Additions from acquisitions (3,223) (132,422)

Payments 141,790 11,800

Gain included in earnings — 7,433

Balance at end of year $ (23,593) $ (162,160)
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U.S. Private Placement: Fair value of the outstanding bonds is based on an estimation using the changes in the U.S. Treasury rates.

German Private Placement: Fair value is based on an estimation using changes in the euro swap rates.

The estimated fair values may not represent actual values of the financial instruments that could be realized as of the balance sheet
date or that will be realized in the future. There were no adjustments in the twelve-month periods ended December 31, 2020, 2019
or 2018 for nonfinancial assets or liabilities required to be measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis.

16. Debt
At December 31, 2020 and 2019, total current long-term debt, net of debt issuance costs of $10.7 million and $10.8 million,
respectively, consists of the following:

((iinn tthhoouussaannddss)) 22002200 22001199

0.875% Senior Unsecured Cash Convertible Notes due 2021 $ 200 $ 285,244

0.500% Senior Unsecured Cash Convertible Notes due 2023 361,304 347,995

1.000% Senior Unsecured Cash Convertible Notes due 2024 429,496 413,272

0.000% Senior Unsecured Convertible Notes due 2027 442,481 —

3.75% Series B Senior Notes due October 16, 2022 304,761 302,040

3.90% Series C Senior Notes due October 16, 2024 26,956 26,944

The fair values of the financial instruments presented in the tables above were determined as follows:

Cash Convertible Notes and Convertible Notes: Fair value is based on an estimation using available over-the-counter market
information on the Cash Convertible Notes due in 2021, 2023 and 2024 as well as the Convertible Notes due in 2027.

((iinn tthhoouussaannddss))

22002200 22001199

CCaarrrryyiinngg

AAmmoouunntt LLeevveel 11 LLeevveel 22

CCaarrrryyiinngg

AAmmoouunntt LLeevveel 11 LLeevveel 22

Cash convertible notes $ 791,000 $ 1,167,201 $ — $ 1,046,511 $ 1,296,334 $  —

Convertible notes 442,481 510,930 — — — —

U.S. Private placement 331,717 — 337,747 328,984 — 329,157

German private placement 357,551 — 361,957 330,857 — 334,371

$ 1,922,749 $ 1,678,131 $ 699,704 $ 1,706,352 $ 1,296,334 $ 663,528
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YYeeaarrss eennddiinngg DDeecceemmbbeerr 3311,, ((iinn tthhoouussaannddss))

2021 $ 42,539

2022 485,795

2023 361,304

2024 572,870

2025 —

thereafter 460,241

$ 1,922,749

The notes are all unsecured obligations that rank pari passu. Interest expense on long-term debt was $63.5 million, $68.0 million
and $61.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

In 2020, we repaid $296.4 million of the 2021 Notes, leaving $0.2 million outstanding as of December 31, 2020, which will be
repaid at the original maturity on March 19, 2021.

In 2019, we repaid $506.4 million of long-term debt including $430.0 million for the amount due for the 2019 Cash Convertible
Notes, $73.0 million for amounts due for the U.S. Private Placement and $3.4 million for a portion of the 2021 Cash Convertible
Notes which was converted during the contingent conversion period as discussed further below.

Future maturities (stated at the carrying values) of long-term debt as of December 31, 2020, are as follows:

Convertible Notes due 2027

On December 17, 2020, we issued zero coupon convertible notes in an aggregate principal amount of $500.0 million with a
maturity date of December 17, 2027 (2027 Notes). The 2027 Notes carry no coupon interest. The net proceeds of the 2027 Notes
totaled $497.6 million, after debt issuance costs of $3.7 million, of which $1.3 million was accrued as of December 31, 2020.

In accounting for the issuance of the 2027 Notes, we separated the 2027 Notes into liability and equity components. We allocated
$445.9 million of the 2027 Notes to the liability component, representing the fair value of a similar debt instrument that does not
have an associated convertible feature; and $54.1 million to the equity component, representing the conversion option, which does
not meet the criteria for separate accounting as a derivative as it is indexed to our own stock.

The effective interest rate of the 2027 Notes is 1.65%, which is imputed based on the amortization of the fair value of the embedded
cash conversion option over the remaining term of the 2027 Note.

((iinn tthhoouussaannddss)) 22002200 22001199

German Private Placement (Schuldschein) 357,551 330,857

Total long-term debt 1,922,749 1,706,352

Less current portion 42,539 285,244

Long-term portion $ 1,880,210 $  1,421,108
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We incurred issuance costs of $3.7 million related to the 2027 Notes. Issuance costs were allocated to the liability and equity
components based on the same proportion used to allocate the proceeds. Issuance costs attributable to the liability component of
$3.3 million are amortized to interest expense over the term of the 2027 Notes, and issuance costs attributable to the equity
component of $0.5 million are included along with the equity component in equity.

The 2027 Notes are convertible into common shares based on an initial conversion rate, subject to adjustment, of 2,477.65 shares
per $200,000 principal amount of notes (which represents an initial conversion price of $80.7218 per share, or 6.2 million
underlying shares). At conversion, we will settle the 2027 Notes by repaying the principal portion in cash and any excess of the
conversion value over the principal amount in shares of common stock.

The notes may be redeemed at the option of each noteholder at their principal amount on December 17, 2025 or in connection with
a change of control or delisting event.

The 2027 Notes are convertible in whole, but not in part, at the option of the noteholders on a net share settlement basis, at the
prevailing conversion price in the following circumstances beginning after January 27, 2021 through June 16, 2027:

if the last reported sale price of our common stock for at least 20-consecutive trading days during a period of 30-consecutive

trading days ending on the last trading day of the immediately preceding calendar quarter is greater than or equal to 130% of the

conversion price on each applicable trading day; or

if we undergo certain fundamental changes as defined in the agreement; or

Cash Convertible Notes due 2019, 2021, 2023, and 2024
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Additionally, conversion may occur at any time following a Contingent Conversion Period through the fifth business day immediately
preceding the applicable maturity date.

Upon conversion, noteholders will receive an amount in cash equal to the Cash Settlement Amount, calculated as described below.
The Cash Convertible Notes are not convertible into shares of our common stock or any other securities.

Noteholders may convert Cash Convertible Notes into cash at their option at any time during the Contingent Conversion Periods
described above only under the following circumstances (Contingent Conversion Conditions):

if the last reported sale price of our common stock for at least 20-consecutive trading days during a period of 30-consecutive

trading days ending on the last trading day of the immediately preceding calendar quarter is greater than or equal to 130% of the

conversion price on each applicable trading day;

if we undergo certain fundamental changes as defined in the agreement;

during the five-business day period immediately after any 10 consecutive trading day period in which the quoted price for each

trading day of the measurement period was less than 98% of the product of the last reported sale price of our common stock and

the conversion rate on each such trading day;

if parity event or trading price unavailability event, as the case maybe occurs during the period of 10 days, including the first

business day following the relevant trading price notification date;

if we elect to distribute assets or property to all or substantially all of the holders of our common stock and those assets or other

property have a value of more than 25% of the average daily volume-weighted average trading price of our common stock for the

prior 20 consecutive trading days;

if we elect to redeem the Cash Convertible Notes; or

if we experience certain customary events of default, including defaults under certain other indebtedness until such event has been

cured or waived or the payment of the Notes have been accelerated.

CCaasshh
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AAnnnnuuaal
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PPaayymmeennttss MMaattuurriittyy DDaattee CCoonnttiinnggeenntt CCoonnvveerrssiioonn PPeerriioodd

CCoonnvveerrssiioonn RRaattee

ppeerr $$220000,,000000

PPrriinncciippaal AAmmoouunntt
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The Contingent Conversion Conditions in the 2021, 2023, and 2024 Notes noted above have been analyzed under ASC 815,

Derivatives and Hedging, and, based on our analysis, we determined that each of the embedded features listed above are clearly
and closely related to the 2021, 2023 and 2024 Notes (i.e., the host contracts). As a result, pursuant to the accounting provisions of

ASC 815, Derivatives and Hedging, the Contingent Conversion Conditions noted above are not required to be bifurcated as separate
instruments.

No Contingent Conversion Conditions were triggered for the 2023 Notes and 2024 Notes as of December 31, 2020.

Upon conversion, holders are entitled to a cash payment (Cash Settlement Amount) equal to the average of the conversion rate
multiplied by the daily volume-weighted average trading price for our common stock over a 50-day period. The conversion rate is
subject to adjustment in certain instances but will not be adjusted for any accrued and unpaid interest. In addition, following the
occurrence of certain corporate events that may occur prior to the applicable maturity date, we may be required to pay a cash make-
whole premium by increasing the conversion rate for any holder who elects to convert Cash Convertible Notes in connection with the
occurrence of such a corporate event.

We may redeem the Cash Convertible Notes in their entirety at a price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the applicable Cash
Convertible Notes plus accrued interest at any time when 20% or less of the aggregate principal amount of the applicable Cash
Convertible Notes originally issued remain outstanding.

Because the Cash Convertible Notes contain an embedded cash conversion option, we have determined that the embedded cash
conversion option is a derivative financial instrument, which is required to be separated from the Cash Convertible Notes and
accounted for separately as a derivative liability, with changes in fair value reported in our consolidated statements of income (loss)

until the cash conversion option transaction settles or expires. The initial fair value liability of the embedded cash conversion option
for the 2019 and 2021 Notes was $51.2 million and $54.0 million, respectively, $74.5 million for the 2023 Notes, and $98.5
million for the 2024 Notes, which simultaneously reduced the carrying value of the Cash Convertible Notes (effectively an original
issuance discount). For further discussion of the derivative financial instruments relating to the Cash Convertible Notes, refer to Note
14 "Derivatives and Hedging".

As noted above, the reduced carrying value on the Cash Convertible Notes resulted in a debt discount that is amortized to the
principal amount through the recognition of non-cash interest expense using the effective interest method over the expected life of the
debt, which is five and seven for the 2019 Notes and 2021 Notes, and six years for the 2023 Notes and 2024 Notes, respectively.
This resulted in our recognition of interest expense on the Cash Convertible Notes at an effective rate approximating what we would
have incurred had nonconvertible debt with otherwise similar terms been issued. The effective interest rate of the 2019 Notes, 2021
Notes, 2023 Notes and 2024 Notes is 2.937%, 3.809%, 3.997% and 4.782% respectively, which is imputed based on the
amortization of the fair value of the embedded cash conversion option over the remaining term of the Cash Convertible Notes.

In connection with the issuance of the 2019 and 2021 Cash Convertible Notes, we incurred approximately $13.1 million in
transaction costs. We incurred approximately $6.2 million in transaction costs for the 2023 Cash Convertible Notes. For 2024 Cash
Convertible Notes, we incurred $5.7 million transaction costs. Such costs have been allocated to the Cash Convertible Notes and
deferred and are being amortized to interest expense over the terms of the Cash Convertible Notes using the effective interest
method.

Interest expense for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 related to the 2027 Notes and the Cash Convertible Notes was
comprised of the following:

((iinn tthhoouussaannddss)) 22002200 22001199

Coupon interest $ 9,025 $ 9,954

Amortization of original issuance discount 38,229 36,966

Amortization of debt issuance costs 2,942 3,014

TToottaal iinntteerreesstt eexxppeennssee $ 50,196 $ 49,934
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Cash Convertible Notes Call Spread Overlay

Concurrent with the issuance of the Cash Convertible Notes, we entered into privately negotiated hedge transactions (Call Options)
with, and issued warrants to purchase shares of our common stock (Warrants) to, certain financial institutions. We refer to the Call
Options and Warrants collectively as the “Call Spread Overlay”. The Call Options are intended to offset any cash payments payable
by us in excess of the principal amount due upon any conversion of the Cash Convertible Notes. During 2014, we used $105.2
million of the proceeds from the issuance of the 2019 and 2021 Cash Convertible Notes to pay for the Call Options, and
simultaneously received $69.4 million from the sale of the Warrants, for a net cash outlay of $35.8 million for the Call Spread
Overlay.

During 2017, we used $73.7 million of the proceeds from the from the issuance of the 2023 Cash Convertible Notes to pay for the
premium for the Call Option, and simultaneously received $45.3 million from the sale of Warrants, for a net cash outlay of $28.3
million for the Call Spread Overlay. A total of $0.4 million in issuance costs were paid in connection with the Warrant and the Call
Option.

In November 2018, we used $97.3 million of the proceeds from the from the issuance of the 2024 Cash Convertible Notes to pay
for the premium for the Call Option, and simultaneously received $72.4 million from the sale of Warrants, for a net cash outlay of
$24.9 million for the Call Spread Overlay. A total of $0.9 million in issuance costs were paid in connection with the Warrant and
the Call Option.

The Call Options are derivative financial instruments and are discussed further in Note 14 "Derivatives and Hedging". The Warrants

are equity instruments and are further discussed in Note 18 "Equity".

Aside from the initial payment of a premium of $105.2 million (2019 and 2021 Notes), $73.7 million (2023 Notes), and $97.3
million (2024 Notes) for the Call Option, we will not be required to make any cash payments under the Call Options, and will be
entitled to receive an amount of cash, generally equal to the amount by which the market price per share of our common stock
exceeds the exercise price of the Call Options during the relevant valuation period. The exercise price under the Call Options is
initially equal to the conversion price of the Cash Convertible Notes.

During 2019, we received $133.2 million in cash upon the exercise of the call options in connection with the repayment of the 2019
Notes. In the same transaction, we paid $132.7 million for the intrinsic value of the 2019 Notes' embedded cash conversion option.
The net effect of the cash paid and received of $0.5 million was recognized as a gain in other income, net. In connection with the
early conversion of a portion of 2021 Notes during 2019, we received $1.5 million upon the exercise of the related call options.
Also, we paid $1.1 million for the intrinsic value of the 2021 Notes' embedded cash conversion option. As a result of these early
conversions, a gain of $0.4 million was recognized in other income, net.

During 2020, while the 2021 Notes were contingently convertible, we received conversion notices for $119.4 million of outstanding
principal. In December 2020, we initiated a tender offer and repurchased a further $177.0 million of outstanding principal. In
connection with these transactions, we received $239.8 million in cash upon the exercise of the call options and we paid $237.4
million for the intrinsic value of the 2021 Notes' embedded cash conversion option. The net effect of the cash paid and received of
$2.4 million was recognized as a gain in other income, net. Following the completion of the tender offer, $0.2 million of 2021 Notes
will remain outstanding and will be repaid or converted at their stated maturity date on March 19, 2021.

The Warrants that were issued with our Cash Convertible Notes, could have a dilutive effect to the extent that the price of our
common stock exceeds the applicable strike price of the Warrants. For each Warrant that is exercised, we will deliver to the holder a
number of shares of our common stock equal to the amount by which the settlement price exceeds the exercise price, plus cash in lieu
of any fractional shares. We will not receive any proceeds if the Warrants are exercised.
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In October 16, 2012, we completed a private placement through the issuance of new senior unsecured notes at a total amount of
$400.0 million with a weighted average interest rate of 3.66% (settled on October 16, 2012). The notes were issued in three series:
(1) $73.0 million 7-year term due and paid on October 16, 2019 (3.19%); (2) $300.0 million 10-year term due on October 16,
2022 (3.75%); and (3) $27.0 million 12-year term due on October 16, 2024 (3.90%). We paid $2.1 million in debt issuance costs
which will be amortized through interest expense using the effective interest method over the lifetime of the notes. The note purchase
agreement contains certain financial and non-financial covenants, including but not limited to, restrictions on priority indebtedness
and the maintenance of certain financial ratios. We were in compliance with these covenants at December 31, 2020. Based on an
estimation using the changes in the U.S. Treasury rates, the Level 2 fair value of these senior notes as of December 31, 2020 and
2019 was approximately $337.7 million and $329.2 million, respectively. During 2014, we entered into interest rate swaps, which
effectively fixed the fair value of $200.0 million of this debt, which was reduced to $127.0 million following the 2019 $73.0 million

repayment. These interest rate swaps qualify for hedge accounting as fair value hedges as described in Note 14 "Derivatives and

Hedging".

In 2017, we completed a German private placement bond ("Schuldschein") which was issued in several tranches totaling $331.1
million due in various periods through 2027. The Schuldschein consists of one U.S. dollar and several Euro denominated tranches.
The Euro tranches are designated as a foreign currency non-derivative hedging instrument that qualifies as a net investment hedge as

described in Note 14 "Derivatives and Hedging". Based on the spot rate method, the change in the carrying value of the Euro
denominated tranches attributed to the net investment hedge as of December 31, 2020 totaled $26.9 million of unrealized loss and
is recorded in equity. We paid $1.2 million in debt issuance costs which are being amortized through interest expense over the
lifetime of the notes. A summary of the tranches is as follows:

EUR 11.5 million Fixed 0.4% March 2021 $ 14,115 $  12,905

EUR 23.0 million Floating EURIBOR +

0.4%

March 2021 28,224 25,811

EUR 21.5 million Fixed 0.68% October 2022 26,361 24,112

EUR 64.5 million Floating EURIBOR +

0.5%

October 2022 79,083 72,335

USD $45.0 million Floating LIBOR + 1.2% October 2022 44,948 44,919

EUR 25.0 million Floating EURIBOR +

0.5%

October 2022 30,642 28,026

EUR 64.0 million Fixed 1.09% June 2024 78,429 71,747

EUR 31.0 million Floating EURIBOR +

0.7%

June 2024 37,989 34,753

EUR 14.5 million Fixed 1.61% June 2027 17,760 16,249

$ 357,551 $ 330,857
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Income tax expense (benefit) for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

((iinn tthhoouussaannddss)) 22002200 22001199 22001188

Current—The Netherlands $ 270 $ 5,670 $ 5,794

—Foreign 86,720 13,371 52,835

86,990 19,041 58,629

Deferred—The Netherlands (6,921) 4,177 2,551

—Foreign 215 (59,539) (25,823)

(6,706) (55,362) (23,272)

Total income tax (benefit) expense $ 80,284 $ (36,321) $ 35,357

The financial markets regulators in the United Kingdom and the Eurozone have passed regulations that will become effective in 2021
under which LIBOR and EURIBOR in their current form will not be compliant. Market participants and regulators are working on
establishing new interest rate benchmarks. While the outcome of this work is not clear yet, the Schuldschein, our syndicated loan
facility, and our interest rate swaps continue to make reference to the current LIBOR and EURIBOR benchmark rates. These
agreements contain language for the determination of interest rates in case the benchmark rate is not available. However, it appears
likely that the agreements will need to be adjusted in line with still to be developed market practice once new benchmark rates
become available.

Revolving Credit Facility

Our credit facilities available and undrawn at December 31, 2020 total 427.0 million (approximately $524.0 million). This
includes a 400.0 million syndicated ESG-linked revolving credit facility expiring December 2023 and three other lines of credit
amounting to 27.0 million with no expiration date. The 400.0 million facility can be utilized in Euro and bears interest of 0.525%
to 1.525% above EURIBOR, and is offered with interest periods of one, three or six months. The commitment fee is calculated based
on 35% of the applicable margin. In 2020, $0.9 million of commitment fees were paid. The revolving facility agreement contains
certain financial and non-financial covenants, including but not limited to, restrictions on the encumbrance of assets and the
maintenance of certain financial ratios. We were in compliance with these covenants at December 31, 2020. The credit facilities are
for general corporate purposes and no amounts were utilized at December 31, 2020.

17. Income Taxes
Income (loss) before income taxes for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018 consisted of:

((iinn tthhoouussaannddss)) 22002200 22001199 22001188

Pretax income in The Netherlands $  (16,640) $  17,455 $  (1,675)

Pretax income (loss) from foreign operations 456,112 (95,231) 227,412

$ 439,472 $  (77,776) $  225,737
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(1)  During 2020, we analyzed accruals for tax contingencies, primarily related to the potential nondeductibility of the $95.0 million
expense reimbursement paid in connection with the unsuccessful acquisition attempt by Thermo Fisher and ongoing income tax audits.

(2)  Due to increased taxable income and deferred tax liability position in 2020, we released a net $35.6 million valuation
allowance primarily related to U.S. disallowed interest.

(3)  Our effective tax rate reflects the benefit of our global operations where certain income or loss is taxed at rates higher or lower
than The Netherlands’ statutory rate of 25% as well as the benefit of some income being partially exempt from income taxes due to
various intercompany operating and financing activities. These foreign tax benefits are due to a combination of favorable tax laws,
regulations and exemptions in these jurisdictions. Partial tax exemptions exist on foreign income primarily derived from operations in
Germany, The Netherlands and Singapore. Further, we have intercompany financing arrangements in which the intercompany income
is nontaxable or partially exempt or subject to lower statutory tax rates. During 2020, we had intercompany arrangements through
Dubai, and in 2018 through mid-2019 had arrangements through Luxembourg and Ireland.

(4)  Government incentives include favorable tax regulations in the U.S. relating to research and development expense and other
government incentives.

We conduct business globally and, as a result, file numerous consolidated and separate income tax returns in The Netherlands,
Germany, and the U.S. federal jurisdiction, as well as in various other state and foreign jurisdictions. In the normal course of
business, we are subject to examination by taxing authorities throughout the world. Tax years in The Netherlands are potentially open
back to 2008 for income tax examinations by tax authorities. The German group is open to audit for the tax years starting in 2014

((iinn tthhoouussaannddss)) 22002200 22001199 22001188

Income taxes at The Netherlands statutory rate 25.0 % 25.0 % 25.0 %

Unrecognized tax benefits (1) (8.2) (14.1) 6.0

Valuation allowance (2) (8.1) (26.9) 1.5

Taxation of foreign operations, net (3) (2.1) 33.1 (15.1)

Prior year taxes (1.6) (1.4) 0.2

Tax impact from intangible property transfer (0.8) 27.2 –

Tax impact from (deductible) nondeductible items (0.8) (10.3) 1.3

Excess tax benefit related to share-based compensation (0.6) 5.1 (2.1)

Government incentives and other deductions (4) (0.6) 9.7 (1.2)

Changes in tax laws and rates (0.3) (0.4) 0.8

Other items, net 0.0 (0.3) (0.7)

EEffffeeccttiivvee ttaaxx rraattee 18.3 % 46.7 % 15.7 %

The Netherlands statutory income tax rate was 25% for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018. Income from foreign
subsidiaries is generally taxed at the statutory income tax rates applicable in the respective countries of domicile. The principal items
comprising the differences between income taxes computed at The Netherlands statutory rate and our effective tax rate for the years
ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018 are as follows:
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At December 31, 2020 and 2019, our net unrecognized tax benefits totaled approximately $100.1 million and $58.0 million,
respectively, which, if recognized, would favorably affect our effective tax rate in any future period. It is reasonably possible that
approximately $38.0 million of the unrecognized tax benefits may be released or utilized during the next 12 months due to lapse of
statute of limitations or settlements with tax authorities; however, various events could cause our current expectations to change in the
future. The above unrecognized tax benefits, if ever recognized in the financial statements, would be recorded in the statements of
income (loss) as part of income tax expense (benefit).

Our policy is to recognize interest accrued related to an underpayment of income taxes in interest expense and penalties within
income tax expense. For the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, we recognized a net expense for interest and
penalties of $1.9 million, $1.6 million and $1.1 million, respectively. At December 31, 2020 and 2019, we have accrued interest of
$4.4 million and $2.5 million, respectively, which are not included in the table above.

We have recorded net deferred tax assets of $15.7 million and $33.1 million at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. The
components of the net deferred tax asset and liability at December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

((iinn tthhoouussaannddss)) 22002200 22001199 22001188

Balance at beginning of year $ 58,002 $ 55,780 $ 44,033

Additions based on tax positions related to the current year 31,758 5,770 3,359

Additions for tax positions of prior years 3,560 14,532 11,984

Decrease for tax position of prior years (57) (9,073) —

Decrease related to settlements — (7,605) —

Decrease due to lapse of statute of limitations (520) (409) (1,238)

Increase (decrease) from currency translation 7,349 (993) (2,358)

Balance at end of year $ 100,092 $ 58,002 $ 55,780

and in 2019, the German tax authority commenced an audit for the 2014-2016 tax years. The U.S. consolidated group is subject to
federal and most state income tax examinations by tax authorities beginning with the year ending December 31, 2017 through the
current period. Our other subsidiaries, with few exceptions, are no longer subject to income tax examinations by tax authorities for
years before 2016.

Changes in the amount of unrecognized tax benefits for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019, and 2018 are as follows:
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At December 31, 2020, we had $686.3 million in total net operating loss (NOL) carryforwards which included $318.6 million for
Germany, $176.4 million for the U.S., $68.5 million for The Netherlands, $49.8 million for Spain, and $73.0 million for other
foreign jurisdictions. The NOL carryforwards in Germany and Spain carryforward indefinitely and we expect them to be fully utilized
in future years. The entire NOL carryforward in the U.S. is subject to limitations under Section 382 of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code.
The NOL carryforwards in the U.S. expire between 2024 and 2034 and in The Netherlands the NOL carryforwards expire between
2026 and 2028. NOL carryforwards of $25.3 million in other foreign jurisdictions expire between 2021 and 2030 while the
remainder can be carried forward indefinitely. At December 31, 2020, we had $158.8 million of disallowed interest carryforwards
which can be carried forward indefinitely. At December 31, 2020, tax credits total $3.0 million which expire between 2030 and
2039.

For the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, the changes in the valuation allowance charged to income tax expense
totaled $36.8 million, $19.0 million and $0.8 million, respectively. For the year ended December 31, 2020, the changes in the
valuation allowance charged to additional paid in capital totaled $13.5 million. The valuation allowance principally relates to
disallowed interest carryforwards and net operating loss carryforwards. The Company can only recognize a deferred tax asset to the
extent it is "more likely than not" that these assets will be realized. Judgments around realizability depend on the availability and
weight of both positive and negative evidence.

As of December 31, 2020, a deferred tax liability has not been recognized for residual income taxes in The Netherlands on the
undistributed earnings of the majority of our foreign subsidiaries as these earnings are considered to be either indefinitely reinvested
or can be repatriated tax free under the Dutch participation exemption. The indefinitely reinvested earnings retained of our
subsidiaries that would be subject to tax if distributed amounted to $538.3 million at December 31, 2020. Estimating the amount of
the unrecognized deferred tax liability on indefinitely reinvested foreign earnings is not practicable. Should the earnings be remitted
as dividends, we may be subject to taxes including withholding tax. We have $28.1 million of undistributed earnings that we do not
consider indefinitely reinvested and have recorded a deferred tax liability at December 31, 2020 and 2019, of $1.6 million and
$1.5 million, respectively.

((iinn tthhoouussaannddss))

22002200 22001199

DDeeffeerrrreedd TTaaxx

AAsssseett

DDeeffeerrrreedd TTaaxx

LLiiaabbiiliittyy

DDeeffeerrrreedd TTaaxx

AAsssseett

DDeeffeerrrreedd TTaaxx

LLiiaabbiiliittyy

Net operating loss and tax credit carryforward $ 67,856 $ — $ 50,274 $  —

Accrued and other liabilities 22,926 — 17,977 —

Inventories 3,872 (2,269) 4,726 (1,439)

Unrealized gain (loss) on investments — (25,779) – (4,973)

Property, plant and equipment 6,099 (23,376) 5,297 (20,332)

Intangible assets 2,817 (55,999) 1,078 (26,294)

Share-based compensation 18,377 — 13,787 —

Disallowed interest carryforwards 42,090 — 73,690 —

Convertible notes 6,512 (13,513) 7,104 —

Other 9,428 (6,046) 5,998 (6,174)

179,977 (126,982) 179,931 (59,212)

Valuation allowance (37,332) — (87,619) —

$ 142,645 $ (126,982) $  92,312 $  (59,212)

Net deferred tax assets $ 15,663 $ 33,100
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During 2020, 0.8 million common shares were issued in connection with the early conversion of 4.2 million warrants related to the
2021 Notes which resulted in a $7.5 million decrease to additional paid in capital, a $22.7 million decrease in retained earnings,
and a decrease of $30.3 million in treasury shares. The remaining warrants related to the 2021 Notes of 6.3 million were terminated
in 2020, resulting in a cash payment of $174.6 million, a $30.3 million decrease to additional paid in capital and a $144.3 million
decrease in retained earnings.

During 2019, 2.1 million common shares were issued in connection with the conversion of the 15.2 million warrants related to the
2019 Notes which resulted in a $31.1 million decrease to additional paid in capital, a $37.7 million decrease in retained earnings,
a decrease of $68.8 million in treasury shares and an approximately $4 thousand cash payment for fractional shares.

18. Equity

Shares

The authorized classes of our shares consist of Common Shares (410 million authorized), Preference Shares (450 million authorized)
and Financing Preference Shares (40 million authorized). All classes of shares have a par value of 0.01. No Financing Preference
Shares or Preference Shares have been issued. Like all shareholders' equity accounts, common shares are translated to U.S. dollars at
the foreign exchange rates in effect when the shares are issued.

Issuance and Conversion of Warrants

In connection with the issuance of the Cash Convertible Notes as described in Note 16 "Lines of Credit and Debt", we issued
Warrants as summarized in the table below. The number of warrants and exercise prices are subject to customary adjustments under
certain circumstances. The proceeds, net of issuance costs, from the sale of the Warrants are included as additional paid in capital in
the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

The Warrants are exercisable only upon expiration. For each Warrant that is exercised, we will deliver to the holder a number of
shares of our common stock equal to the amount by which the settlement price exceeds the exercise price, divided by the settlement
price, plus cash in lieu of any fractional shares. The Warrants could separately have a dilutive effect on shares of our common stock
to the extent that the market value per share of our common stock exceeds the applicable exercise price of the Warrants (as
measured under the terms of the Warrants).

Caasshh ccoonnvveerrttiibblee nnootteess Issssuueedd oonn

NNuummbbeerr ooff sshhaarree

wwaarrrraannttss

((iinn mmiilliioonnss))

EExxeerrcciissee pprriiccee ppeerr

sshhaarree

PPrroocceeeeddss ffrroomm

iissssuuaannccee ooff

wwaarrrraannttss,, nneett ooff

iissssuuaannccee ccoossttss

((iinn mmiilliioonnss))

WWaarrrraannttss eexxppiirree

oovveerr aa ppeerriioodd ooff

5500 ttrraaddiinngg ddaayyss

bbeeggiinnnniinngg oonn

2019 March 19, 2014 15.2 $32.0560 $40.6 December 27,

2018

2021 March 19, 2014 10.6 $32.0560 $28.3 December 29,

2020

2023 September 13,

2017

9.7 $50.9664 $45.3 June 26, 2023

2024 November 13,

2018

10.9 $52.1639 $72.4 August 27, 2024
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Share Repurchase Programs

On May 6, 2019, we announced our sixth share repurchase program of up to $100 million of our common shares. During 2020, we
repurchased 1.3 million QIAGEN shares for $64.0 million (including transaction costs). This program ended on December 17, 2020.

On January 31, 2018, we announced our fifth share repurchase program of up to $200 million of our common shares. During 2018,
we repurchased 2.9 million QIAGEN shares for $104.7 million (including transaction costs). During 2019, we repurchased 2.0
million QIAGEN shares for $74.5 million (including transaction costs), bringing the total shares repurchased under this program to
4.9 million for $179.1 million (including transaction costs). This program ended on June 30, 2019.

The cost of repurchased shares is included in treasury stock and reported as a reduction in total equity when a repurchase occurs.
Repurchased shares will be held in treasury in order to satisfy various obligations, which include exchangeable debt instruments,
warrants and employee share-based remuneration plans.

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss

The following table is a summary of the components of accumulated other comprehensive loss as of December 31, 2020 and 2019:

((iinn tthhoouussaannddss)) 22002200 22001199

Net unrealized loss on hedging contracts, net of tax $ (23,268) $ (2,289)

Net unrealized loss on pension, net of tax (599) (561)

Foreign currency effects from intercompany long-term investment transactions, net of tax of

$10.7 million and $9.7 million in 2020 and 2019, respectively

(25,717) (22,587)

Foreign currency translation adjustments (194,238) (284,182)

Accumulated other comprehensive loss $ (243,822) $ (309,619)

19. Earnings per Common Share
We present basic and diluted earnings per share. Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net income (loss) by the
weighted average number of common shares outstanding. Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that would occur if
all “in the money” securities to issue common shares were exercised.

The following schedule summarizes the information used to compute earnings per common share for the years ended December 31,
2020, 2019 and 2018:
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20. Commitments and Contingencies

Licensing and Purchase Commitments

We have licensing agreements with companies, universities and individuals, some of which require certain up-front payments. Royalty
payments are required on net product sales ranging from 0.45 percent to 25 percent of covered products or based on quantities
sold. Several of these agreements have minimum royalty requirements. The accompanying consolidated balance sheets include
accrued royalties relating to these agreements in the amount of $7.4 million and $5.5 million at December 31, 2020 and 2019,
respectively. Royalty expense relating to these agreements amounted to $12.2 million, $13.5 million, and $14.0 million for the years
ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively. Royalty expense is primarily recorded in cost of sales, with a small
portion recorded as research and development expense depending on the use of the technology under license. Some of these
agreements also have minimum raw material purchase requirements and requirements to perform specific types of research.

For purposes of considering the 2027 Notes in determining diluted earnings (loss) per common share, only an excess of the
conversion value over the principal amount would have a dilutive impact using the treasury stock method. Since the 2027 Notes were
out of the money and anti-dilutive during the period from December 17, 2020 through December 31, 2020, they were excluded from
the diluted earnings (loss) per common share calculation in 2020.

Due to the net loss for the year ended December 31, 2019, stock options and restricted stock units representing approximately 3.9
million weighted-average shares of common stock and warrants representing 1.7 million shares of common stock were excluded from
the computation of diluted net loss because the impact would have been antidilutive.

((iinn tthhoouussaannddss,, eexxcceepptt ppeerr sshhaarree ddaattaa)) 22002200 22001199 22001188

Net income (loss) $ 359,188 $ (41,455) $ 190,380

 

Weighted average number of common shares used to compute basic net

income per common share

228,427 226,777 226,640

Dilutive effect of stock options and restrictive stock units 3,350 — 4,613

Dilutive effect of outstanding warrants 2,437 — 2,203

Weighted average number of common shares used to compute diluted

net income per common share

234,214 226,777 233,456

Outstanding options and awards having no dilutive effect, not included

in above calculation

11 107 272

Outstanding warrants having no dilutive effect, not included in above

calculation

26,438 32,938 35,939

 

Basic earnings (loss) per common share $ 1.57 $ (0.18) $ 0.84

Diluted earnings (loss) per common share $ 1.53 $ (0.18) $ 0.82
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Of the $26.6 million total contingent obligation as discussed further in Note 9 "Financial Instruments and Fair Value Measurements,"
we have assessed the fair value at December 31, 2020 to be $23.6 million which is included in accrued and other current liabilities
in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet.

Employment Agreements

Certain of our employment contracts contain provisions which guarantee the payments of certain amounts in the event of a change in
control, as defined in the agreements, or if the executive is terminated for reasons other than cause, as defined in the agreements. At
December 31, 2020, the commitment under these agreements totaled $21.2 million.

Contingencies

In the ordinary course of business, we provide a warranty to customers that our products are free of defects and will conform to
published specifications. Generally, the applicable product warranty period is one year from the date of delivery of the product to

At December 31, 2020, we had commitments to purchase goods or services, and for future license and royalty payments. They are
as follows:

Yeeaarrss eennddiinngg DDeecceemmbbeerr 3311,, ((iinn tthhoouussaannddss))

PPuurrcchhaassee

CCoommmmiittmmeennttss

LLiicceennssee && RRooyyaalttyy

CCoommmmiittmmeennttss

2021 $ 199,843 $ 10,003

2022 42,628 7,217

2023 5,364 4,483

2024 3,000 2,623

2025 — 2,349

Thereafter — 3,364

$ 250,835 $ 30,039

As of December 31, 2020, $28.4 million of the total purchase commitments are with companies in which we hold an interest and are
considered related parties.

Contingent Consideration Commitments

Pursuant to the purchase agreements for certain acquisitions and other contractual arrangements, we could be required to make
additional contingent cash payments totaling up to $26.6 million based on the achievement of certain revenue and operating results
milestones as follows:

YYeeaarrss eennddiinngg DDeecceemmbbeerr 3311,, ((iinn tthhoouussaannddss))

2021 $ 8,850

2022 17,700

$ 26,550
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21. Segment Information
We operate as one operating segment in accordance with the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards

Codification (ASC) Topic 280, Segment Reporting. We have a common basis of organization and our products and services are
offered globally. Considering the acquisitions made during 2020 and our continued restructuring and streamlining of the growing
organization, our chief operating decision maker (CODM) continues to make decisions with regards to business operations and
resource allocation based on evaluations of QIAGEN as a whole. Accordingly, we operate and make decisions as one business
segment. Product category and geographic information follows below.

Product Category Information

Net sales for the product categories are attributed based on those revenues related to sample and assay products and similarly

related revenues including bioinformatics solutions, and revenues derived from instrumentation sales. Refer to Note 4 "Revenue" for
disaggregation of revenue based on product categories and customer class.

the customer or of site acceptance, if required. Additionally, we typically provide limited warranties with respect to our services. We
provide for estimated warranty costs at the time of the product sale. The changes in the carrying amount of warranty obligations for
the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

((iinn tthhoouussaannddss)) 22002200 22001199

Balance at beginning of year $ 3,141 $ 2,848

Provision charged to cost of sales 5,645 3,229

Usage (3,978) (2,921)

Adjustments to previously provided warranties, net (125) (1)

Currency translation 130 (14)

Balance at end of year $ 4,813 $ 3,141

Litigation

From time to time, we may be party to legal proceedings incidental to our business. As of December 31, 2020, certain claims, suits
or legal proceedings arising out of the normal course of business have been filed or were pending against QIAGEN or our
subsidiaries. These matters have arisen in the ordinary course and conduct of business, as well as through acquisition. Although it is
not possible to predict the outcome of such litigation, we assess the degree of probability and evaluate the reasonably possible losses
that we could incur as a result of these matters. We accrue for any estimated loss when it is probable that a liability has been
incurred and the amount of probable loss can be estimated.

Litigation accruals recorded in accrued and other current liabilities totaled $5.2 million as of December 31, 2020 and $0.8 million
as of December 31, 2019. The estimated amount of a range of possible losses as of December 31, 2020, is between $4.7 million
and $16.3 million. During the year ended December 31, 2020, $0.3 million was paid. Based on the facts known to QIAGEN and
after consultation with legal counsel, management believes that such litigation will not have a material adverse effect on our financial
position or results of operations above the amounts accrued. However, the outcome of these matters is ultimately uncertain, thus any
settlements or judgments against us in excess of management's expectations could have a material adverse effect on our financial
position, results of operations or cash flows.
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Long-lived assets include property, plant and equipment. The Netherlands, which is included in the balances for Europe, reported
long-lived assets of $1.5 million and $1.3 million as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

22002200 22001199

Americas:

United States $ 154,843 $ 147,027

Other Americas 2,436 3,507

Total Americas 157,279 150,534

Europe, Middle East and Africa:

Germany 304,571 229,225

Other Europe, Middle East and Africa 71,444 49,004

Total Europe, Middle East and Africa 376,015 278,229

Asia Pacific and Japan 26,078 26,480

Total $ 559,372 $ 455,243

Geographical Information

Net sales are attributed to countries based on the location of the customer. QIAGEN operates manufacturing facilities in Germany,
China, and the United States that supply products to customers as well as QIAGEN subsidiaries in other countries. The intersegment
portions of such net sales are excluded to derive consolidated net sales. No single customer represents more than ten percent of
consolidated net sales. Our country of domicile is The Netherlands, which reported net sales of $17.8 million, $15.8 million and
$15.9 million for the years ended 2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively, and these amounts are included in the line item Europe,
Middle East and Africa as shown in the table below.

Neett ssaaleess ((iinn tthhoouussaannddss)) 22002200 22001199 22001188

Americas:

United States $ 728,577 $ 663,869 $ 632,660

Other Americas 96,880 58,121 60,359

Total Americas 825,457 721,990 693,019

Europe, Middle East and Africa 682,289 487,476 490,301

Asia Pacific, Japan and Rest of World 362,600 316,958 318,528

Total $ 1,870,346 $ 1,526,424 $ 1,501,848
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The total intrinsic value of options exercised during the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018 was $6.5 million, $2.0
million and $5.0 million, respectively. The actual tax benefit for the tax deductions from option exercises totaled $1.3 million, $0.5
million, and $0.8 million during the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively. At December 31, 2020, there
was no unrecognizezz d share-based compensation expense related to employee stock option awards.

At December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, 0.4 million, 0.8 million and 0.9 million options were exercisable at a weighted average
price of $19.28, $20.06 and $20.04 per share, respectively. The options outstanding at December 31, 2020 expire in various
years through 2023.

Stock Units

Stock units represent rights to receive Common Shares at a future date and include restricted stock units which are subject to time-
vesting only and performance stock units which include performance conditions in addition to time-vesting. The final number of
performance stock units earned is based on the performance achievement which for some grants can reach up to 200% of the
granted shares. There is no exercise price and the fair market value at the time of the grant is recognized over the requisite vesting
period, generally up to 5 or 10 years. The fair market value is determined based on the number of stock units granted and the market
value of our shares on the grant date. Pre-vesting forfeitures were estimated to be approximately 6.2%. At December 31, 2020, there
was $73.1 million remaining in unrecognized compensation cost including esee timated forfeitures related to these awards, which is
expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 2.25 years. The weighted average grant date fair value of stock units
granted during the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018 was $36.92, $37.28 and $35.37, respectively. The total fair
value of stock units that vested during the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018 was $29.3 million, $123.9 million and
$54.3 million, respectively.

22. Share-Based Compensation

We adopted the QIAGEN N.V. Amended and Restated 2005 Stock Plan (the 2005 Plan) in 2005 and the QIAGEN N.V. 2014 Stock
Plan (the 2014 Plan) in 2014. The 2005 Plan expired by its terms in April 2015 and no further awards will be granted under the
2005 Plan. The plans allow for the granting of stock rights and incentive stock options, as well as non-qualified options, stock grants
and stock-based awards, generally with terms of up to 5 or 10 years, subject to earlier termination in certain situations. The vesting
and exee ercisability of certain stock rights will be accelerated in the event of a Change of Control, as defined in the plans. All option
grants have been at the market value on the grant date or at a premium above the closing market price on the grant date. We issue
Treasury Shares to satisfy option exercises and award releases and had approximately 14.4 million Common Shares reserved and
available for issuance under the 2005 and 2014 Plans at December 31, 2020.

Stock Options

We have not granted stock options since 2013. A summary of the status of employee stock options as of December 31, 2020 and
changes during the year then ended is presented below:
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Outstanding at January 1, 2020 792 $ 20.06

Exercised (365) $ 20.97

Outstanding at December 31, 2020 427 $ 19.28 1.25 $ 14,338

Vested at December 31, 2020 427 $ 19.28 1.25 $ 14,338

Vested and expected to vest at December 31, 2020 427 $ 19.28 1.25 $ 14,338
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Beginning in 2019, we began net share settlement for the tax withholding upon the vesting of awards. Shares are issued on the
vesting dates net of the applicable statutory tax withholding to be paid by us on behalf of our employees. As a result, fewer shares
are issued than the number of stock units outstanding. We record a liability for the tax withholding to be paid by us as a reduction to
treasury shares.

Compensation Expense

Share-based compensation expense before taxes for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018 totaled approximately
$40.9 million, $65.9 million and $40.1 million, respectively, as shown in the table below.

(1) Does not include the excess tax benefit realized for the tax deductions of the share-based payment arrangements which totaled
$2.5 million, $4.0 million and $4.7 million, respectively, for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018.

Share-based compensation expense includes amounts related to the restructuring programs discussed in Note 6 "Restructuring and

Impairment"", including accelerated expense in 2019. No share-based compensation costs were capitalized for the years ended
December 31, 2020, 2019 or 2018 as the amounts were not material.

((iinn tthhoouussaannddss)) 22002200 22001199 22001188

Cost of sales $ 2,897 $ 2,493 $ 2,879

Research and development 7,014 5,810 6,457

Sales and marketing 15,889 7,947 9,372

General and administrative 15,136 23,705 21,405

Restructuring, acquisition, integration and other,

net

— 25,938 —

Share-based compensation expense 40,936 65,894 40,113

Less: income tax benefit (1) 9,552 12,153 8,277

Net share-based compensation expense $ 31,384 $ 53,740 $ 31,836
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AAggggrreeggaattee
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Outstanding at January 1, 2020 5,183

Granted 1,035

Vested (720)

Forfeited (365)

Outstanding at December 31, 2020 5,133 2.25 $ 261,458

Vested and expected to vest at December 31, 2020 3,881 2.02 $ 205,097

A summary of stock units as of December 31, 2020 and changes during the year are presented below:
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Net sales with related parties primarily reflects our ventures in China including our partnership to externalize the HPV test franchise
for cervical cancer screening in China as well as our joint venture with Sichuan Maccura Biotechnology Co., Ltd which was

terminated in conjunction with the 2019 restructuring activities discussed further in Note 6 "Restructuring and Impairments" which
also details related party restructuring charges.

23. Employee Benefits
We maintain various benefit plans, including defined contribution and defined benefit plans. Our U.S. defined contribution plan is
qualified under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code, and covers substantially all U.S. employees. Participants may contribute
a portion of their compensation not exceeding a limit set annually by the Internal Revenue Service. This plan includes a provision for
us to match a portion of employee contributions. Total expense under the 401(k) plans, including the plans acquired via business
acquisitions, was $3.6 million, $4.0 million and $4.0 million for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018,
respectively. We also have a defined contribution plan which covers certain executives. We make matching contributions up to an
established maximum. Matching contributions made to the plan, and expensed, totaled approximately $0.2 million in each of the
years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018.

We have five defined benefit, non-contributory retirement or termination plans that cover certain employees in Germany, France,
Japan, Italy and the United Arab Emirates. These defined benefit plans provide benefits to covered individuals satisfying certain age
and/or service requirements. For certain plans, we calculate the vested benefits to which employees are entitled if they separate
immediately. The benefits accrued on a pro-rata basis during the employees’ employment period are based on the individuals’
salaries, adjusted for inflation. The liability under the defined benefit plans was $9.3 million at December 31, 2020 and $8.2 million
at December 31, 2019, and is included as a component of other long-term liabilities on the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets.

24. Related Party Transactions
From time to time, we have transactions with other companies in which we hold an interest, all of which are individually and in the
aggregate immaterial, as summarized in the table below.

Net sales to related parties for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019, and 2018 are as follows:

((iinn tthhoouussaannddss))

FFoorr tthhee yyeeaarrss eennddeedd DDeecceemmbbeerr 3311,,

22002200 22001199 22001188

Net sales $ 6,025 $ 20,002 $ 23,358
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Prepaid expenses and other current assets include supplier advances from companies with which we have an investment or
partnership interest. As of December 31, 2019, this also included short-term loan receivables that were collected during 2020.

During 2018, we purchased a convertible note for $15.0 million from a privately held company due in December 2021. During
2020, we purchased an additional convertible note from the same company for $10.0 million due in August 2023. Both notes bear
interest at 8%. In the event the company goes public, the notes will convert into common shares in the company ranking pari passu
with existing common shares. As of December 31, 2020, $17.1 million is included in prepaid expenses and other current assets and
$9.0 million is included in other long-term assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets related to the principal, accrued
interest and allowance for credit loss upon adoption of ASC 326 on January 1, 2020. As of December 31, 2019, $16.3 million is
included in other long-term assets related to the principal and accrued interest due from this company related to the convertible note.

In connection with the 2019 Restructuring further discussed in Note 6 "Restructuring and Impairments", we entered into an agreement
with a non-publicly traded company considered a related party to reduce future purchase commitments. As of December 31, 2019
due to this agreement, $12.8 million was included in accrued and other current liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance
sheet. Payment occurred during the year ended December 31, 2020.

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019 balances with related parties are as follows:

((iinn tthhoouussaannddss)) 22002200 22001199

Accounts receivable $ 3,961 $ 7,589

Prepaid expenses and other current assets $ 25,429 $ 13,697

Other long-term assets $ 9,594 $ 16,830

Accounts payable $ 4,050 $ 1,775

Accrued and other current liabilities $ 1,380 $ 15,404
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CCoommppaannyy NNaammee JJuurriissddiiccttiioonn ooff Innccoorrppoorraattiioonn

Amnisure International, LLC USA

Cellestis Pty. Ltd. Australia

Life Biotech Partners B.V. Netherlands

NeuMoDx Inc. USA

STAT-Dx Life S.L. Spain

QIAGEN Aarhus A/S Denmark

QIAGEN AB Sweden

QIAGEN AG Switzerland

QIAGEN Australia Holding Pty. Ltd. Australia

QIAGEN Benelux B.V. Netherlands

QIAGEN Beverly LLC USA

QIAGEN China (Shanghai) Co. Ltd. China

QIAGEN Luxembourg SARL Luxembourg

QIAGEN Deutschland Holding GmbH Germany

QIAGEN Finance (Malta) Ltd. Malta

QIAGEN France S.A.S. France

QIAGEN Gaithersburg LLC USA

QIAGEN GmbH Germany

QIAGEN Hamburg GmbH Germany

QIAGEN Inc. Canada

QIAGEN Instruments AG Switzerland

QIAGEN K.K. Japan

QIAGEN LLC USA

QIAGEN Ltd. UK

QIAGEN Manchester Ltd. UK

QIAGEN Marseille S.A. France

QIAGEN North American Holdings Inc. USA

QIAGEN Pty. Ltd. Australia

QIAGEN Redwood City Inc. USA

QIAGEN Sciences LLC USA

QIAGEN S.r.l. Italy

QIAGEN Treasury Management Services Ltd. UAE

QIAGEN U.S. Finance LLC USA
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Auditor’s Report

Report of the Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
To the Shareholders and Supervisory Board

QIAGEN N.V.:

Opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of QIAGEN N.V. and subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of December
31, 2020 and 2019, the related consolidated statements of income (loss), comprehensive income (loss), changes in equity, and cash
flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2020, and the related notes and financial statement
schedule as listed in Item 18 (A) (collectively, the consolidated financial statements). In our opinion, the consolidated financial
statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the
results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2020, in conformity
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States)
(PCAOB), the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 20200 0, based on criteria established in Internal
Control – Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission, and our
report dated March 4, 2021 expressed an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting.

Change in Accounting Principle

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, in 2020 the Company has changed its method of accounting for
expected credit losses on financial instruments and other commitments due to the adoption of Accounting Standards Codification

Topic 326 – Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments. In 2019, the Company has changed its method for accounting

for leases due to the adoption of Accounting Standards Codification Topic 842 – Leases.

Basis for Opinion

These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB
and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the
applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether
due to error or fraud. Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. Our audits also
included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Critical Audit Matters

The critical audit matters communicated below are matters arising from the current period audit of the consolidated financial
statements that were communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that: (1) relate to accounts or
disclosures that are material to the consolidated financial statements and (2) involved our especially challenging, subjective, or
complex judgments. The communication of critical audit matters does not alter in any way our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements, taken as a whole, and we are not, by communicating the critical audit matters below, providing separate opinions on the
critical audit matters or on the accounts or disclosures to which they relate.

›
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Assessment of unrecognized tax benefits

Initial measurement of fair value of developed technology and in-process research and development assets

related to a business combination

As discussed in Note 1 and 5 to the consolidated financial statements, in September 2020, the Company acquired the remaining
80.1% shares of NeuMoDx Molecular, Inc. (“NeuMoDx”) for a purchase price of $239.4m, net of cash acquired. In allocating the
purchase price, the Company recognized intangible assets at fair value in the amount of $157.2m, including developed technology
($101.0m) and in-process research and development (IPR&D) assets ($55.0m), and goodwill in the amount of $157.6m.

We identified the assessment of the initial measurement of fair value of developed technology and IPR&D acquired in the NeuMoDx
business combination as a critical audit matter. Evaluating the key fair value assumptions, including the projected revenue and
related growth rates, the estimated customer attrition rates and discount rates, involved a high degree of auditor judgment. Minor
changes in those assumptions could have a significant effect on the determination of fair value. In addition, the audit effort required
specialized skills and knowledge.

The following are the primary procedures we performed to address this critical audit matter. We evaluated the design and tested the
operating effectiveness of an internal control related to the Company’s acquisition-date fair value measurement process of intangible
assets, including the development of the key assumptions. We evaluated the growth rates used by the Company to determine
projected revenue by comparing them to industry benchmarks and publicly available data. We assessed the customer attrition rates
by comparing it to historical data of the Company. We involved valuation professionals with specialized skills and knowledge, who
assisted in:



197

F inanc ia l  Re su l t s   ›   Auditor’s Report

To the Shareholders and Supervisory Board

QIAGEN N.V.:

We have audited QIAGEN N.V.’s and subsidiaries’ (the “Company”) internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2020, based on criteria established in Internal Control – Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2020, based on criteria established in Internal Control – Integrated Framework
(2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States)
(PCAOB), the consolidated balance sheets of the Company as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the related consolidated statements
of income (loss), comprehensive income (loss), changes in equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended
December 31, 2020, and the related notes and financial statement schedule as listed in Item 18 (A) (collectively, the consolidated
financial statements), and our report dated March 4, 2021 expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial
statements.

The Company acquired NeuMoDx Molecular, Inc. during 2020, and management excluded from its assessment of the effectiveness of
the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2020, NeuMoDx Molecular, Inc.’s internal control over
financial reporting associated with 6.31% of total assets and 0.53% of total revenues included in the consolidated financial
statements of the Company as of and for the year ended December 31, 2020. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting of
the Company also excluded an evaluation of the internal control over financial reporting of NeuMoDx Molecular, Inc.

/s/ KPMG AG Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft

We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2015.

Düsseldorf, Germany

March 4, 2021

performing sensitivity analyses to assess the impact of possible changes to the key assumptions on the fair value of these intangible

assets, and

developing an estimated range of fair values of the intangible assets acquired using the Company’s key assumptions and an

independently developed range of discount rates using publicly available market data for comparable entities and comparing them

to the Company’s selected discount rates.



198

Basis for Opinion

The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of
the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying ‘Report of Management on Internal
Control over Financial Reporting’. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting based on our audit. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with
respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities
and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material
respects. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audit also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in
the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Definition and Limitations of Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to
the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections
of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

 

/s/ KPMG AG Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft

Düsseldorf, Germany

March 4, 2021
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